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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
Materialise NV
Leuven, Belgiurn

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Materialise NV (the "Company") and subsidiaries

as of Decer¡ber31,2017,2016 and2015, the related consolidated income statements, statements of comprehensive incorne, changes in
equity and cash flows for each of the three yeals in the period ended December 3 l, 2017 , and the related notes (collectively referred to
as the "consolidated financial statements"), In oul opinion, the consolidated financial statements present failly, in all material respects,

tlre financial position of the Cornpany and subsidiaries at December 31,2017,2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and

their caslr flows fol each of the thlee yeals in the period ended Decemb er 31 , 2017 , in conformify with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

Tl.rese consolidated financial statements arç the responsibility of the Cornpany's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements based on our audits, We are a public accounting f,trm registered with the

Public Cornpany Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and arç required to be independent with respect to the

Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standarcls of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to enor
or fi'aud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
As palt of our audits we are required to obtain an undelstanding of intemal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contrcjl over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such

oplnlon.

Our audits included perfolming procedures to assess the tisks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to enol ol fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks, Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,

evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fìnancial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the ovetall plesentation of the

consolidated financial statelnents. We believe that our audits provìde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

BDO Bednjfsrevisolen Bulg. CVBA

Represented by Belt Kegels

/s/ Bert Kegels

'We have served as the Company's auclitor since 2014

Zaventem, Belgium

April 30, 2018
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Consolidated income statements

in 000€, except per share data

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross proflt
Research and development expenses

Sales and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Net other operating income / (experues)
Operating profit (loss)
Financial expenses

Financial income
Sha¡e in loss ofjoint venture
Loss before taxes

Net loss for the year
Net loss attributable to:
The owners ofthe parent

Non+onholling interest
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary owners ofthe parent
Basic
Diluted

For the year ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015

22.3
22.4
22.5
22.6

22.8
22.9

E

Notes

22.1
1"t 1

142,573
(62,787)
79,786

(l 9,959)
(39, I 09)
(25,484)

5,631
865

(4,728)
3,210
(46e)

(1,122)

114,477
(46,706)
67,771

(17,682)
(36,153)
(20,041)

6,212
107

Q,437)
2,039

(1,018)
(1,309)

(0.06)
(0.06)

102,035
(42,963)
s9,o72

(l 8, I 86)
(36,832)
(1s,04s)

7,102
(3,889)
(2,470)
3,51 I
(401)

(3,249)

- 389
(2,860)

(2,801)
(53)

(1,656) (3,019)

(1,656) (3,019)

23
23

(0.03)
(0.03)

(0.06)
(0.06)

The accompanying notes form an integral patt of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

in 000€

Net Ioss for the year
Other comprehensive Qoss) income
Exchange differences on hanslation offoreign operations +

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of taxes
Total comprehensive (loss) income athibutable to:

The owners ofthe parent
Non-conholling interest

*

Notes 2017

(1,65O

For the year ended December 31,

(2,347) (4;Ss2) r (2,183)
(s3)

May be reclassified subsequently to profit & loss

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidatsd financial statements,
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Consolidated statements of fìnancial position

in 000€

Assets
Non-current assets

Goodwill
Intangible assets

Property, plant & equipment
Investments in joint ventures

- , Defened..tax assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

' Inventories and contracts in progress

Trade receivables
Other curreat assets

Cash and cash equivalents

, Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

For the year ended December 31,

2017 2016 20r5

18,447
28,646
86,8E1

31

304
3,667

137,976

7,870
27,479

4,481
55,912
95,742

161,920

5

6

7
8

22.10
10

8,860
9,76s

45,063

9,664
9,657

38,400
1,018

1,092
3s6

60,187

5,387
22,843
4,993

50,726
83,949

144,136

336
2,154

66,178

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statements of financial position

in 000€

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Share prernium
Consolidated reserves
Othel comprehensive income
Dquity attributable to the owners of the parent
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Loans & borrowings
Defered tax liabilities
Deferred income
Other non-cun'ent liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Loans & borrowings
Trade payables
Tax payables
Defered income
Other culrent liabilities

Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

For the yeår er¡ded December 31,

Notes 2017 2016 2015+

l3
l3
l3

l7
t8
19

15

22.t0
18

l6

l5

2,729
79,839
(3,250)
(1,803)
77,515
77,515

2,729
78,098

1,407
721

82,955
82,955

4,482
9,712

255
14,696
9,212

38,357
144,136

2,729
79,019
(l,603)
(t,ttz)
79,033
79,033

81,788
7,006
5,040
1,904

95,738

28,267
t,325
3,5 88

l,873
35,053

16,607
2,068
I,905
2,244

22,824

12,769
15,670
3,560

18,791
13,496
64,286

237,539

5,539
13,400

926
l'l,822
10,r47
47,834

161,920

,k The ye ar 201 5 has been restated to reflect the reclassification of the long-term defered income. See note 2 for more information.

The accompanying notes folm an integral patt of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statements of changes in equity

in 000€

At January 1,2017
Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Equity-settled share-based paym€nt expense
At Decernber 3lr2017

in 000€

At January 1,2016
Net loss for the yeat
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Equity-settled share-based payment expense
At December 31,2016

in 000€

At January l,2015
Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Transfer share capital to share premiunr<orrection
Capital increase in cash
Capital increase through exercise of warrants
Acquisition NCI Mobelife
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

At December 31, 2015

Attributàble to the owners ofthe parents

Share
Notes caPital

2,729

Sha rc
premium

79.019

Reserves

Other
compre-
hensive
income

Non-
controllingry

Non-
controlling

¡nter€st

Non-
coutrolling

interest

(132)
(53)

185

Total
equity

79,033
(r,656)

(6el)
(2,347\

829
77,515

Totâl
equity

82,955
(3,0 I 9)
( r ,833)
(4,852)

930
79,033

Total
cquity

85,167
(2,860)

624
(2,236)

580
95

(t,371)
726

82,955

l4
, 1)Q

(1,603)
(1,6s6)

(1,656)
9

l1 t(nì

(1,112)

(6el)
(6e1)

11 ROll

Total

?9r033
(1,6s6)

(6e1)
(2,341)

829
11 <lq

820
7q tto

Attributable to the owners ofthe parents

Sha re
Notes capital

2,729

Share
premium

78,098
Reserves

Other
compre-
hensive
income

721
Total

82,955
(3,01 9)
( l ,833)
(4,852)

930
79,033

1,407
(3,0l e)

(3,019)
(r,833)
(1,833)

Share
Notes capital

2,788

Sharc
prenrium

76,650

t49219-
2,729 79,019 (1,603) (l,ll2)

Ä.ttributablc to the owners of thc oarents

Rcserves

sJ64
(2,801)

Other
compre-
he¡rsive
income

(2,807) (s3)

97

624
624

69(6e)

Total

85,299
(2,807)

624
(2,183)

5 575
14590

( r.s62)
14 714 12

2,729 78,098 7,407 721

580
95

(1,562)
'726

82,955

The accompanying notes form an integral palt ofthese consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated cash flow statements

in 000€

Operating activities
Net loss fol the year
N o n- cas h and op e ratio nal adj us tmenls

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill
Share-based payment expense
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Movement in provisions
Movement reserve for bad debt
Financial income
Financial expense
hnpact of foreign currencies
Share in loss of a ioint venture (equity method)
Income taxes and deferred taxes
Fair value adjustment contingent consideration
Other'
Working capital adjustment & income tax paid
Increase in trade receivables and other receivables
Declease (inclease) in inventories
Increase in trade payables and other payables
Incone tax paid
Net cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended
December 31,

Notes 2017 2016 2015

(1,6s6) (3,019) (2,860)

7

6

5

t4
7

l1
22.9
22.8

8,630
4,001

1,03 3

25

61

502
(381)

1,597
302
469
534

(6,510)
(e84)

3,854
(l,s6e)
9,886

6,420
1,954

977
(t4e)

l8
77

(172)
983

(400)
1,018

1,712
(45s)
(78)

(6,465)
(2,482)
9,086
(530)

8,495

5,122
1,585

104
769
(62)

(l l6)
254

(4r3)
901

(l,530)
401

(3 88)

(6,645)
(1,671)
7,148
(246)

2,353

8

22.10
4

(22)

The accompanying notes folm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statements

in 000€

Investing activlties
Purchase of property, plant & equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from the sale ofproperty,plant & equipment (net)

Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash)

Investments in joint-ventures

Investments in investments held to maturity
Interest received

Net cash flow used ln lnvesting activities
tr'inancing activities

Proceeds from loans & borrowings
Repayment of loans & borrowings
Repayment of finance leases

Proceeds from the exeLcise ofwarrants
Purchase of ûon-contolling interest

. Capital increase in parent company
Interest pâid
Other financial income (expense)

Net cash flow from (used ln) fìnanclng activities
Net increase/(decrease) ofcash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning ofthe year
Exchange rate diffelences on cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at end ofthe year

Notes

For the year ended December 31'

2017 2016 2015

7
6

7

4
8

l2

(27,668)
(4,345)

221
(27,173)

(s00)

(12,237)
(2,342)
r,928

14,669
(2,796)
(1,898)

(630)
(7e)

9,266
5,121

50,726
65

55,972

(8,907)
(1,641)

338
(1,619)
(1,000)
10,000

35
(2,794)

281 11

(59,184) (12,640)

15 54,3t9
15 (l 1,904)
t5 (2,947)
t4
l3
l3

(e55)
(472)

38,041
(11,257)

t2 55,912
(r,480)

12 43,175

s,672
(4;711)
(1,546)

95
(t,377)

580
(58e)

88
(r,788)
(2,229)
51,019

|,936
50,726

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I Corporate information

Matelialise NV is a limited liability company with its registered off,rce at Technologielaan 15,3001 Leuven, Belgium, The consolidated

financial statements complise Materialise NV (the "Company" or "Parent") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group"). See Note 28

for a list of subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group is a leading provider of additive manufacfuling (AM) software and of sophisticated 3D printing services. The products and

selvices of the Group are organized in the thlee segments: Materialise Medical, Materialise Software and Materialise Manufacturing.
The Group sells its products in Europe, Americas, Africa and Asia-Pacif,rc.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 werc approved and authorized for issue on

April 27 ,2018 in accordance with a resolution of the Parent's Board of Directols.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis ofpreparation

Tlie consolidated financial statements of the Group for thc thrcc years ended December 31 , 201,7 wet'e prepared in accoLCance with the

Intemational Financjal Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (collectively
"IFRS") and with International Financial Reporling Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union C'EU-IFRS').

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for thc assets and liabilities that have been

acquired as part of a business combination which have been initially recognized at fair value and certain financial instruments which ate

measured at fair value.

The ccnscliCateC hnancial statements a1'e presented in thousands of e';ros (K€ ot'thousands of €) and all "cttrrency" values aLe roun<le<l

to the nearest thousand (€000), except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in cornpliance with adopted IFRS requiles the use of cerlain critical accounting estimates. It also

lequires Group management to exercise judgment in applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas where signif,rcant judgment

and estimates have been made in pleparing the financial statements and their effect are disclosed in Note 3.

New standards, interpretations and amentlments adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and levised standards and interpretations issued by the IASB and IFRIC that are t'elevant to

its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on January 1, 2017 .

. IAS 12: Income taxes - Amendments legarding the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses;

. IAS 7: Cash flow statement - Amendments as l'esult of the Disclosule initiative;

. Annual Improvements to IFRS 10 2014-2016 Cycle (December 201 6)

The application of the above new standards and intelpretations did not have a significant impact on the financial position and the results

of the Group.

Classífication error acfusted in 2016

Through September 30,2016, the Group presented all deferred income associated with maintenance and license contracts and project

contracts as a cutrent liability while a portion of such deferred income relates to contractual periods that are more than l2 months after

the reporting date and therefore such portion should have been presented as non-current. The Group has an increasing volume of
software and project contracts with a contractual term of more than 12 months.

As fi'om the financial reporting year ended Decembel 31,2016, the Group is presenting portions of its defened income associated with

such contracts as current and non-current liabilities. This presentation has been applied retroactively for the financial reporting year

ended December 3 1, 201 5.

The impact on the statement of financial position is as follows:

in 000€

Defened income - current - prìor to change

Deferred income - current - restated
Reclassiñed non-current deferred maintenance revenue
Deferred income - non-current - prior to change

Deferred lncome - non-current - restated

For the year ended
December 31,

2015

16,509
14,696

1,813
92

1,905
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Notes to the corrsolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis for consolidation

The consolidated f,rnancial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries.

Entities at'e fully consolidated fi'om the date of acquisition, which is the date when the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the entities are prepared for the same reporting period

as the palent company, using consistent accounting policies. All intr-a-Group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses

resulting from intra-Group transactions and dividends are fully eliminated.

The Group attlibutes profit or loss and each component of other complehensive income to the ownet's of the parent company and to the

non-controlling interest based on present ownership interests, even ifthe results in the non-controlling interest have a negative balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, If the Group loses

control over the subsidiary, it will derecognize the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interest and the other conponents of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising from the loss of control is recognized
in profìt or loss. If the Group retains an interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date the

contlol is lost.

The propoltion allocated to the parent and non-controlling interests in preparing the consolidated financial statements is determined

based solely on present ownership interests.

Tlre following changes to the consolidation scope occurred in2017:

. Acquisition of ACTech Holding Gmbh, ACTech Gmbh and ACTech North America Inc. as of October 4,2011;

. Liquidation of Rapidfit Inc.

. Liquidation of Orlhoview US Inc.

Non-controlling interests

The Group has the choice, on a transaction by transaction basis, to initially recognize any non-controlling intelest in the acquiree which
is a present ownership interest and entitles its holders to a proporlionate shale ofthe entity's net assets in the event ofliquidation at

either acquisition date fair value or, at the present ownership instruments' proportionate shale in the recognized amounts of the

acquiree's identifiable net assets. Other components ofnon-controlling interest such as outstanding share options are generally

measured at fair value. The Group has not elected to take the option to use fair value in acquisitions completed to date and cunently
does not have non-controlling interest resulting from business combinations.

Foreign currency translation

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is also the parent company's functional currency. For each

entity, the Group determines the functional cun'ency, and iterns included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using

the functional curency.

Financi al statetne.nls of foreign subsidiaries

Foreign subsidiaries use the local curencies of the countty where they operate. The statement of financial position is translated into
euro at the closing rate on the reporting date and theil income statement is translated at the average exchange t'ate at each month-end.

Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of said subsidiaries are recognizecl in other comprehensive income

as "exchange diffelences on tt'anslation offoreign operations".
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Forei gn curren cy lrans act i ous

T-^-^^^¿:^-^ )^-^^;^^r^Å:- ¡:^-^:-- ^,,.-.^-^ì^^ ^-^ +-nø.1^+-'l i-t^ ^".¡ .+ +ho o-^hon-Þ r^¡ê t¡ tlre enrl nFlhc nrer¡inrrc mnnflr-cndI ldllS.lçtlUllù Utllullllll4LçU lll ¡UrUlËr¡ Lultullulvr dtu Lla¡roraLwu ltrtv vurv tr t¡r! v^e¡.s¡rÞ

Monetary items in the statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at each reporting date and the relevant translation

adjustments are recognized in financial or operating result depending on its nature.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the acquisition date, which is the date at which the Gloup

obtains control over the entity. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the amount of the considerâtion transfened to the seller,

--.""'^¡ "+ +L. .^nrrici+inn rlafp foir. r¡qlrrc rnrl lhc ernnrrnf nf enr¡ nnn-e nnf rollino interest in lhe acnltil'eers¡r ?srqv, '""""""'Þ "'-'_- ---l--^----

The Group measures goodwill initially at cost at the acquisition date, being:

. the fair value ofthe consideration transfened to the seller, plus

. the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, plus

" ifthe business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value ofthe existing equity interest in the acquiree te-tneasttred at

the acquisition date, less

. the fair value ofthe net identifiable assets acquired and assumed liabilities

Goodwill is lecognized as an intangible asset with any impainnent in carrying value being charged to the consolidated income

statement. Whele the fail value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the

excess is credited in full to the consolidated income statement on acquisition date.

Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be lecognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent

changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized either as a profit

o1 loss or as a change to other compt'ehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classif,ied as equity, it should not be

re-measured until it is finally settled within equity.

Acquisition ofnon-controlling interests are accounted for as an equity transaction.

Investments in joint ventures

The Group canies investment in a joint venture (RS Print NV). The Group's investtnents in its joint venture is accounted for using the

equity method. Under the equily method, the investment in the joint ventule was initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the

investment is adjusted to recognize changes itr the Group's share of net assets of the joint ventute since the acquisition date. Goodwill

relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The income statement reflects the Gloup's share of the results of operations of the joint ventute. Any change in othel compt'ehensive

income of the joint venture is presented as part of the Group's other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change

recognized directly in the equity of the joint venhll'e, the Gloup t'ecognizes its share of the change in the statement of changes in equity.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint ventute are eliminated to the extent of the

interest in the joint venture.

After application of the equity rnethod, the Group detelmines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its invcstr.nent

in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint

ventuie is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impainnent as the difference between the recoverable

amount of thè Group's interest in the joint venture (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell), and then recognizes the loss

as 'Share of profit or loss ofjoint ventures' in the income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprnent is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/ot'accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost

includes borrowing costs directly attributable to construction projects ifthe asset necessarily takes a substantial period oftime to get

ready for its intended use, it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the group and the cost can be measured

leliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such

pafts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,

its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipnrent as a replacement if the recognition criteria are

satished. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the incorne statetnent as incuned.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings:
Furniture, Plant & Equipment
Property leased Assets -

Leased machines

20-50 years
5-30 years
I 5-30 years ot lease tenn if shorter
5-10 years or lease term ifshorter

Land is not depreciatecl.

A leased assct is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain

ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estlmated useful life of the asset or the lease tern.

An item ofproperty, plant and equiprnent and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected fi'om its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on delecognition ofthe asset (calculated as the

tlifference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is includcd in the income statement when the asset is

derecognized.

The assets' residuaI values, useful lives and methods ofdepreciation are teviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively,

if applopliate.

Leases

The determination of whether an an'angement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date,

whethel fulfilment of the anangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the anangement conveys a right to use the

asset, even if that light is not explicitly specified in an anangement.

Finance leases which transfer to the Gloup substantially all the lisks and beneftts incidental to ownership of the leased item, are

capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease

payments. Lease payrnents are apportioned between finance charges and reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate

of interest on the remainìng balance of the liability.

Finaltce charges are recognized as financial expenses in the consolidated incotne statement.

Whele substantially all of the lisks and rewards incidental to ownership are not transfetred to the Gloup (an "operating lease"), the total
rentals payable under the lease ale charged to the consolidated income stater¡ent on a stlaight-line basis ovet'the lease term. The

aggregate benefit of lease incentives is recognized as a reduction of the rental expense ovel' the lease tetm on a straightJine basis.

Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofa qualified asset that nec€ssarily takes a

substantial period oftime to prepale fol its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost ofthe lespective assets. All other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist ofinterest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the consolidated hnancial statements (continued)

Research and development

Rcscaich and dcvelopnrent includes the costs incur'¡ed by activities related to the Ce',relopment cf scftware scluticns (neu, prodttcts,

updates and enhancements), guides and other products.

Development activities involve the application of resealch fìndings or other knowledge to a plan or a design of new or substantially

improved (software) products before the starl of the cotnmercial ttse.

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use ot' sale;

. its intention to complete and its ability to use ot sell the asset;

. how the asset will generate futut'e economic benefits;

. the availability ofresources to complete the asset;

. the ability to measul'e reliably the expenditute during development.

The Group has deterrrined that the conditions for recognizing ìnternally generated intangible assets from propdetary soffware, guide

and othel product development activities ate not met until shortly befole the products are available fot sale, unless eithet (i) the Group

has strong evidence that the above criteria ale met and a detailed business plan is available showing the asset will on a reasonable basis

generate future economic benefits or (ii) the development is done basecl upon specific request of the customer, the Group has the

intention to market the product also to other parties than the custotner, the developtlent is subject to an agreernent and the substance of
the agreernent is that the custolrel reimburses the Group for a significant portion of the development expenses incutred. As such,

development expenditures not satisfying the above criteria and expenditures on the research phase ofinternal proiects are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as incurred. Internally generated intangible assets from ploprietary software are amortized over their

useful lives, starting from the moment they are ready for use/available for sale.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets comprise acquired technology and customer portfolio, patents and licenses, goodwill and technology and customers

acquired in connection with business combinations. Those intangible assets are measured on initial lecognition at cost, except fot the

acquired technology and customers arising from business combinations, which are measured initially at fair value. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets other than goodwill are caried at cost less any accumttlated amortization and accumulated impairment

losses, ifany.

The useful life of the intangible assets is as follows:

Software:
Patents and licenses;
Acquired customers:
Technology:
Order backlog:

3 years;
5 years;
5-20 years;
6-10 years;
Period over which orders will be completed.

The intangible assets with finite lives al'e amortized over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenevet'thelc is on

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method fol an intangible asset with a

finite useful life ar.e reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives

is recognized in the consolidated income statement based on its function which may be "cost of sales", "sale & malketing expenses",

"research & development expenses" and "general and administrative expenses".

Impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets (excluding inventories and deferred tax assets)

Impairment tests on goodwill and othel intangible assets with indefinite useful econotnic lives are undertaken annually at the financial
year end. Other non-financial assets and goodwill are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. rWhere the cauying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher

of value in use and fair value less costs to sell), the asset is written down accordingly.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an indiviclual asset, the impairment test is carried out on the sl'r.rallest

Group of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash flows; its cash generating units ('CGUs'). Goodwill
is allocated on initial recognition to each of the Group's CGUs that are expected to beneht from the synergies of the combination giving

rise to the goodwill.
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Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and fotecast calculations generally cover a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-tern growth rate is calculated and applied to future cash flows plojected after the f,rfth year.

hnpairment charges are inclnded in profit or loss, except, whele applicable, to the extent they l'everse gains previously recognized in
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Whele goodwill forms part of a cash-genelating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated

with the opel'ation disposed of is included in the canying amount of the opelation when detelmining the gain ot'loss on disposal of the

operation. Goodwill disposed of in this cil'cumstance is measured based on the lelative values of the opet'ation disposed of and the

portion ofthe cash-genetating unit retained.

Inventories and Contracts in progress

Inventories are valued at the lower ofcost and net lealizable value

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accountecl for as follows:

. Raw materials: purchase cost on a hrst in, first out basis; and

. Finìshed goods and work in pl'ogl'ess: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of tnannfacturing overheads based

on the normal operating capactty, but excluding botrowing costs

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessaty to make the sale.

A write-off of inventoties is estimated based on an ageing or rotation analysis.

Work in progl'ess relates to production of inventory for which a customer has not yet been sectu'ed, while contracts in progress relates to

ploduction fot specific customets in performance of a signed contract

Contract r€venues and expenses are recognized by reference to the stage ofcompletion ofcontract activity where the outcome ofthe
construction contl'act can be estimated reliably, otherwise l'evenue is recognized only to the extent of recoverable contract costs incutred

þercentage of completion). Contract revenue includes the amount agreed in the initial contract, plus revenue from alternations in the

original contract work. Contract expenses include costs that relate directly to the specific contract, plus costs that ate attributable to the

contractor's general contracting activity to the extent that they can be reasonably allocated to the contract, plus such other costs that can

be specifically charged to the customer under the tetms of the contract.

The stage ofcompletion ofa contract is based on the predefined steps with corresponding fix levels ofcompletion, on a project by
project basis. The Group only accounts for contract revenue before the completion ofthe contract for contract types with a general

throughput time of more than 3 months. Contracts with a shorter throughput time ale accounted fot as wot'k in progress.

Financial assets

Financial assets include loans, deposits, receivables and held-to-maturity investments measut'ed at amortized cost, The Group cunently

does not have available for sale ftnancial investments.

Financial assets measured at arnortized cost

The Group has loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments that are measured at atnottized cost.

The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and other t'eceivables and cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
f,rnancial position.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and - fol the purpose of the statement of cash flows - bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are

shown within loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables and held-to-maturity are initially measured at fair value plus transaction

costs and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR). Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount ol premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integlal part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included

under fìnancial income in the consolidated income statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated

income statement under other operating expenses or financial expenses.

Financíal assets measured at faír value

The Group does not curently have financial assets classified as financial assets at fail value through profit or loss except fol a call
option on non-controlling interests in Rapidfit+ as disclosed in Note 13.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Imp ai nn en I oJ' Ji nan cia I ass ets

The gtoup assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group offinancial assets is

impaired. A frnancial asset or a group of financial assets is to be impaired if there is objective evidence of impainnent as a result of one

or lnore events that has occurred after the initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on

the estin.rated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as thç difference betwçen

the asset's canying amount and the present value of estimated fufure cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effectivç interest

late. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The canying amount of the asset is reduce d thlough the use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is recognized in the income

statement.

Financial liabilities

The G¡oup has financial liabilities measuled at amortized cost which include loans and bouowings, ttade payables and other payables.

Financial liabilities resulting fi'on, written put options on non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. The Group currently does

not have f,rnancial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities at anrcrtized cost

Those financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable tt'ansaction costs and are measuled at amortized

cost using the effective intçrest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate tnethod amortization process.

Written put options on non-controlling interest

The Gloup lecognizes a financial liability for the written put options on non-controlling interest. The wlitten put options have a variable

ledemption price based on a formula as specified in the contract (see Note l3).

. The financial liability is initially recognized at fair value and the fair value is reclassified from non-controlling interest and,

fol any amount higher than the non-controlling interest, from consolidated reseres.

. The fair value is detennined as the present value of the redemption amount.

. Any change in the fair value as a lesult of a change in the estimated redemption plice is recognized directly in consolidated

resel'ves. Any unwinding effect of the present value of the redemption price is recognized directly in profit and loss (financial

cost),

. No share of profit is allocated to the non-controlling interest,

. Upon exercise of the wlitten put option, the canying value will be offset with the cash payment received. When the written
put option is not exercised, the carrying value ofthe financial liability is derecognized against non-controlling interest with
the difference going to consolidated reserves.

C o mp o und Jinancial ins trume nts

The Groqp has issued converlil¡le debt which is accounted for as a compound hnancial instrument. For those instruments, the Group

determines the canying amount of the liability çomponent by measuring the fair value of a similar liability (including any embedded

non-equity derivative featules) that does not have an associated equity component. The canying amount of the equity instrument is then

determined by deducting the fair value of the financial liability from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires
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there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group ale classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial
liability or financial asset. The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a t'esult of a past event, it is probable that

an outflow of resoulces embodying economic benefits will be requiled to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be uade of the

amount of the obligation.

Pensions benefits

The Group has a defined contribution obligation where the Gloup pays contributions basecl on salaries to an insurance cornpany, in

accordance with the laws and agreements in each country.

The Belgian defined contribution pension plans are by law with variable minimum retru'ns based on the Belgian goventtnent bonds,

with a minimum of 1.75o/o and a maximun of 3.75Yo, effective for contributions paid as from 2016. Fol contribution paid until 2015,

tlre minimurn guaranteed retum is 3.25o/o on employer contributions and3.75o/o on enployee contributions.

These plans qualify as defined benefit plans. However for the yeals 2015 and before, when taken into account the historical discussions

on how to account for these specific type of plans where the contributions paid are subject to a minimum guaranteed returï at the level

of IFRIC, the Company believes the application of the projected unit credit method to these plans is troublesome and will not provide a

faithful lepresentation of the liability with respect to these promises. The Group has adopted a t'etlospective approach whereby the net

liability recognized in the statement of fìnancial position is based on the sum of the positive differences, determined by individual plan

participant, between the minimum guaranteed reserves and the benefits acctued at the closing date based on the actual rates of t'eturn.

Contlibutions are recognized as expenses for the period in which employees pet'form the corresponding selvices. Outstanding payments

at the end of the period are shown as other current liabilities.

As from 2016, those plans are accounted for as a defined benefit plan however are considered not material.

Share based payments

Directors and employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,

whereby employees render seruices as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The Group cun'ently has only

warrants and share-appreciation rights as share-based payments.

E quity- s ettl e d trans actio ns

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured, indirectly, at the fair value of the

equity instruments granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a cottesponding increase in other capital

reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized

for equity-settled tlansactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and

the Group's best estimate of the numbel of equily instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or ct'edit for a

period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized at the begiruring and end of that period and is recognized as

employee benefits expense.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The Group does currently only have equity-settled share-based payments that have service-based vesting conditions and no instruments

with malket vesting conditions.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultirnately vest.

When the tenns of an equity-settled awald are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been

modified, if the original terms of thc award are rnet. An additional expense is recognized for any rnodification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment tlansaction, or is other-wise beneficial to the ernployee as measured at the date of modification.

When an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the datc of cancellation, and any expensç not yet recognized for
the award is recognized immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity ol the

employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the

date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the oliginal award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

C as h-s ettIed trans actions

Tl.re Group has cash-settled share-based payment transaction for certain employees in certain countries due to legal requirements (in the

fonn of share-appleciation lights). The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the glant date. This fair
value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corLesponding liability. The liability is remeasured to fair
value at each reporting date up to, ancl including the settlernent date, with changes in fair value recognized in employee benefits
expense.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue, which is presented net of sales taxes, is primalily genetated by the sale of oul software and 3D plinted products

and services. Software revenue is comprised of perpetual and periodic licenses, maintenance revenue and software development service

fees. Perpetual license holders nìay opt to take an annual maintenance contlact, which leads to annual fees. Periodic licenses entitle the

custorner to maintenance, support and product updates without additional charge. 3D printed product revenue is derived from our
network of3D printing service çenters and may include support and selvices such as pre-production collaboration prior to printing the
prodtrct.

The Gloup sells its ploducts and software through its direct sales force and through authorized distributors.

Softwale license revenue, maintenance and,/or software development selice fees may be bundled in one arrangement, or may be sold
separately.

The Group recognizes revenue for goods including software when all the signiftcant risks and rewards have been transferred to the

customel, no continuing rnanagerial involvement usually associated with ownership of the goods is retained, no effective control over
the goods sold is letained, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transactions will flow to the entity and the costs incnrred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

3D printecl proclucts

The Group recognizes revenue on the sale of goods to the customer or distributor upon shipment or delivery taking into account the

shipment tenns (usually Ex-works or FOB Tirne of Shipment Incoterms (International Cotnmercial Terms)).

P erp etual I ice ns ed s oJtware

The sale and/or licensc of software products is deerned to have occurred when a customer either has taken possession of or has the

ability to take immediate possession of the software and the softwale key.

Perpetual softwat'e licenses can include one year maintenance and support services. The Company sells these maintenance services also

on a stand-alone basis and is therefore capable of determining their fair value. On this basis, the amount of the embedded maintenance

is separated from the fee for the perpetual license and is recognizedratably over the peliod to which they relate.
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the same period. The CoÃpany does not sell time-based licenses without maintenance and support services and therefore reventtes for
the entire arrangements are recognized ratably over the term.

Maintenance and support services

The Group recognizes l'evenue fi'om maintenance and suppolt services latably on a straight-line basis over the term that the

maintenance service is plovided. In general, maintenance selices are not automatically renewed.

A maintenance and support contl'act may include a l'einstatement for previous yeat's when the customer did not have a maintenance and

supporl contract previously. Revenue from reinstatements are recognized irnmediately when the tnaintenance and support setviccs

commence.

SoJtware developntent scrv'iccs (SDS)

SDS include customized development of software components for customers. The Gloup tecognizes l'evenue on SDS agreetnents based

either on time and matelial basis or on the stage of completion of each service contract and when the stage of completion can be

measured reliably.

The Company determines the percentage-of-colnpletion by cornparing labor honls incutrecl to-clate to the estimated total labor honts

required to complete the project. The Company considers labor hours to be the most reliable available measure of progress on thcse

pro;""t.. Adjustments to the Con.rpany's estimates of the time to completion ate made when facts resulting in a change becotlle known.
'When the estimate indicates that a loss will be incured, such loss is recognized irnrnediately.

Mu I líp le e I emen t a tan g enrcnts

The Group has entered into a number of multiple element arrangements, such as when selling perpetual licenses that may include

maintenance and support (included in price of perpetual licenses) and time-based licenses (that include embedded tnaintenance and

support, both of which may be sold with software development seryices, training, and other product sales). In some cases, the Group

delivers soffware development services bundled with the sale of the software.

In multiple element arrangements, whether sold to end-customers or to collaboration partners, the Company uses either the stand-alone

selling pìices or management's best estimate of selling prices to determine the fair value of each sepat'ate element within the

arrangement, including software and softwale-related services such as maintenance and supporl. In general, elements in such

anangements are also sold on a stand-alone basis and stand-alone selling prices are available. Vy'here a selling price does not exist on a

stand-alone basis or an estimate cannot be made for such element, as it may not be sold separately, then the remaining fees within the

conh'act are recognized ovel the contractual period on a straight-line basis.

Revenue is allocated to each deliverable based on the fair value of each individual element and is recognized when the revenue

recognition criteria described above are met, except for time-based licenses which are not unbundled. When sofrware development

..*iar. are performed and are considered essential to the functionality of the softwate, the Group recognizes l'evenue fi'om the softwate

developmeni services on a stage of completion basis, and the revenue from the software when the related development services have

been completed,

Contracts with collaboration partners in the medical segment also include multiple elements such as software, maintenance and supporl

services, haining, software development services, 3D printed products and royalties. Revenue from those contracts is determined and

recognized consistent with other multiple element arrangements'

For certain contracts with collaboration partners, the Company also receives up-front fees, paid by customers for cetlain exclusivity

rights grante d only on previously acquired perpetual software licenses, which may be bundled with transfer of title' rights and

ownership of certain softwale products and maintenance and support seryices. The Group recognizes revenues in such arrangements

using the reverse-residual method, where fees for the items that are deemed separate elements, such as maintenance and support

,.*i..r, training, software development services, 3D printed products and royalties are recognized based on their estimated fair value

as each elementls delivered. The remaining fees within the arrangement are lecognized on a stlaightJine basis over the period of
exclusivity, which is up to five years.



F-21



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Royalty income
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corresponding 3D printed goods have been delivered to the çustomer.

Contract revenue

Vy'ith respect to contract revenue we refer to our accounting policies regarding Inventories and Contracts in Progress

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, intelest income is recorded using the effective interest rate, which is the rate

that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or leceipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net canying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included under lìnancial
income in the income statement.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is leasonable assurance that the grant will be teceived and all attached conditions will be

complied with. When the grant relates to development costs or anothet'expense, it is recognized as income over the grant periocl

necessary to match the income on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. When the grant relates to the

consttuction of buildings, it is lecognized as income ovet the amortization period of the related building.

Such grants have been received from the federal and regional govemments and from the European Union in the forms of grants linked
to certain of its research and development programs, reduced payroll taxes and the financing of the constntction of an office building in

Leuven (Belgium) and in Freiberg (Germany).

'Where retention of a government grant related to assets or to incor.ne, is dependent on the Company satisfying cerlain critelia, it is
initially recognized as deferred income. When the criteria for retention have been satisfied, the deferred income balance is released to

other operating income in the consolidated income statement on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity tecognizes as

expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Any government grants recognized as income do not have any unfulfrlled conditions or other contingencies attached to them, as

otherwise we would not be recognizing income for such.

Other financial income and expenses

Other financial income and expenses include mainly foreign cuffency gains 01 losses on frnancial transactions and bank related

expenses.

Taxes

Current income tax

Income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted ol substantively enacted, at the leporling
date.

Current income tax relating to itcms that are recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the income statement.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Defened tax is calculated using the liability method orì temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and theit carrying amounts for financial reporting pulposes.



Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all dçductible
temporaly differences, carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
l¡e available against which the dçductible temporary differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

suff,rcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized defened tax assets are

reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when ihe assei is realized or the

liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset, if a legalty enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against cltrrent

income tax liabilities and the defened taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Revenue, expenses and assets arerecognized net ofthe amount ofVAT, except:

. Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case

the sales tax is recognizedaspart ofthe cost ofacquisition ofthe asset or as palt ofthe expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the

statement of financial position.
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New and revised standards not yet adopted

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the closing date ofthe Group's f,rnancial statements are

disclosed below.

A number ofnew standards, amendments to standards, and inteipretations are not effective for 2017, and therefore have not been

applied in preparing these accounts.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014,the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, or IFRS 9, that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement and all previous velsions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 blings together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments ptoject: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is etTective fol annual periods

beginning on ol after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is

lequiled but ploviding comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requit'ements are generally applied
prospectively, with sorne limited exceptions.

IFRS 9 r'equires us to record expected credit losses on all ofour debt secutities, loans and trade receivables, either on a 12-month or

lifetime basis. We will apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses on all h'ade receivables.

V/e will to adopt the new standard on the required efTective date. The lifetime expected losses will be determined based on a provision

rnatrix applied to the each of the trade receivable aging buckets. 'We are still finalizing the provision matrix but do not expect that this

will have a significant in.rpact on our balance sheet and equity.

IFRS 15 Revenue Jrom Contracts wíth Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Conttacts with Customers, or IFRS 15, was issued in }i4ay 2014 and establishes a five-step model to acçount for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that retlects the consideration to

which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for tlansferring goods or serviçes to a customet.

The standald provides a single, principles based five step model to be applied to all contracts with customers as follows:

. Identily the contract(s) with a customer;

. Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

. Determine the transaction price;

. Allocate the transaction price to the pet'formance obligations in the contract; and

. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entily satishes a perfotmance obligation.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. We will adopt the new standard on

the requiled effective date on January l, 2018. We have performed a detailed assessment of the impact of IFRS l5 which is detailed

below. The transition method that will be applied is the modified retrospective method whereby the cumulative effect of initially
applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in 2018.

Oul IFRS assessment ictentifìed the following areas that may be significantly impacted from a qualitative perspective:

OEM so/ìware license and distribution etgreements

We regularly enter into software license and distribution agreements that may include the right for a partner to embed the Materialise

softwale in its own properly software ol machine, that is marketed and sold to end-custoners, Typically, those contracts plovide a

licenses to use and market the software, training and one year of maintenance and support service. Those performance obligations are

"distinct". Cerlain contracts may also include development services. Those development serices are in general also "distinct" selices
except in case the customer cannot benefit fi'om the license with readily available resources without the development services and the

development services significantly customize/modify the existing license. In that case, those development services are combined with
the license and tecognized over the term ofthe license.



Those agreements may also provide for step-based volume discounts when certain sales targets are achieved and discounts when certain

development revenue is achieved. In current accounting, volume discounts are recognized based on a reasonable estimate of the volume

discounts to be paid and deducted from revenuç over thc contract period (based on sales). Certain other discounts are immediately

deducted in full ûom revenue when they are expected to be met, Under IFRS 15, the transaction price will include an estimate of all the

discounts payable under the contract period and will be subsequentþ allocated to the performance obligations. However, the impact on

revenue is not expected to be matetial as ofJanuary l, 2018.
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Meclical partner license, supply and dislribution agreenents

Mcdical paltncl. Iicense, supply and distribution agreements generally inchrde a time-based license for online ordet management system

and sur.gical guide planning roft*ar., surgical guide development s :rvices and 3D printing, training, set-up and on boarding services

and rnaintenance services. The consideration for the license is in general included within the price for a surgical guide (whether or not

via an explicit royalty added to the price). The current accounting is not significantly clifferent than undet IFRS 15' except for:

. The license is not e onsirler.ed "distinct" and may be combined with the "surgical guide services and pÍinting" as the license

as such has no significant beneht for the partner with other readily available resoul'ces;

. Cerfain agr.eements r-¡ay include significant development selices other than the standald set-up and on boarding selices,
-..t.:^L -:--:ñ^^-rr,, ,-^,lit,/^,,ctnrrri'za rhe evicrinc rrlaf Fnrrrr Ênl llre nllnrose of tlre nalfner and are not considefed "distinct"
wtlllll ùlËrllrlldrrl¡y rrrvvrr)/elrorvrr¡t¿r !¡¡v w/rrJr¡¡¡b ¡

and combined with the license;

. Allocation of the transaction pr.ice over the "distinct" perforirance obligations tlay result in higher or lower revenue

allocated to a performance obligation than the contractual pricing'

The impact ofthe above differences on revenue is expected to be K€323 additional <leferred revenue as ofJanuary l, 2018.

an up-front non-reftlndable fee for exclusivity for a total of
gnizedinthe ptevious years (fi'om 2010 onwards)' Under IFRS 15,

';distinct" petfomlance obligations of the contract which are

intenance, and development sefvices. The impact of this difference

d earnings for the sarre amount as of January 1, 2018. This deferred

revenue will be recognized in revenue over the next three years.

IFRS l5 is not expected to have significant impacts on our other revenue streams such as 3D print products and software license and

telated tnaintenance.

IFRS l5 pr.ovides also new presentation ancl disclosure lequilements, which al'e more detailed than under cutrent IFRS. The

presentatio' reqrir.e¡re¡ts ant change fronr current plactice ancl sigriifìcantly increases the volulne ofdisclosures

iequi.ecl in our.fi¡alcial st the disclósule requirements in IFRS 15 ale completely new. In 2016 and 2017 we

developecl and startecl testi ems, internal conirols, policies and procednres necessalJ to collect and disclose the

lequired information.

Basecl on our detailecl assessrnent, we cuuently estir¡ate the cunrulative effect in letainecl ealrlings as of January 1,2018 as

follows þositive is a debit):

in 000€

Software
Medical
Manufacturing
Total catch-uP adjustment

Januarv 1,2018

7,113

1,173

We will continue to assess individual contracts to detemine the performance obligations included, relating to licenses and royalty based

sales, rnaintenance and suppolt services and the estillated variable considerations and related constraints.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS l6 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Detennining whether an Atrangement contains a Lease,

STC-15 Operating Leases-Incåntives and SIC-21 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS

l6 sets oui the pr.ìnciples for the recognition, measurernent]plesentation and disclosure ofleases and requires lessees to account for all

leases under a sheet model sin.rilar to the accounting f'or finance leases under IAS 17. The standatd includes two

r.ecognition ex es - leases of 'low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and sholt-term leases (i'e., leases with a

lease term of 1 At the comrnencerrent date of a lease, a lessee will l'ecognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,

the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease temr (i.e., the right-oÊuse asset).

Lessees will be r.equired to separátely lecolnize tñe interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the

right-of-use asset.



Notes to the consolidated financial statentents (continued)

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occun'ence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a

change in fufule lease payments resulting from a change in an index ot't'ate used to detet'mine those payments). The lessee will
generally recognize the antount of the lemeasuremcnt of the lease liability as an adiustlnent to the right-of-use asset.

IFRS l6 is effective fol annual periods beginning on ol after January L,201,9, subject to endolsement by the European Union. Early
application is pemritted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retlospective or a modifìed retrospective approach. The standard's transition provisions permit cetlain reliefs. We are however not
intending to early adopt this standald.

Du¡ing 201 8 we plan to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on our consolidated financial statements. To see the volume of operating

leases, please refet'to Note 24.

The other standal'ds, interpretations and amendments issued by the IASB and relevant for the Group, but not yet effective ale not

expected to have a matelial impact on the Group's future consolidated financial statelnents:

. IFRS 2: Shate-based Payrnent - {mçn6lnlsnts to clarifu the classification and measurement of share-based payment

transactions (June 201 6);

. IFRS 3: Business Cornbinations - Annual irnprovements 2015-2017 Cycle;

. Amenclments to IFRS 4 - Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contract (September 2016);

. IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendrnents December 2011) - Deferral of mandatory effective date of IFRS

9 and aurendr¡ents to tt'ansition disclosutes

. IFRS 7: Financial Instmments: Disclosures (Amendment November 2013) - Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and

consequential amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9

. Amen<lments to IAS 40 - Transfels of investment ploperty (December 2016);

. iFRS l0: Consolidated Financial Statements - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Ventut'e;

. IFRS 1 I : Joint Atrangetnents - Annnal Improvements 201 5 - 2017 Cycle;

. IFRS l7: Insurance contracts (May 2017);

. IAS 12: Income Taxes - Annual improvements 2015-2017 Cycle;

. IAS 19: Enrployee Benefits - Plan Amendrlent, Curtailment or Settletnent;

. IAS 23: Borrowing Costs - Annuai Improvernents2015-2017 Cycle;

. IAS 28: Investrnents in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendurents legalding the sale or contribution of assets between

an investor and its associate or joint venture (Septernber 2014), Annual Iurprovernenhs2014-2016 Cycle and Long-term
interest in Associates and Joint Ventures;

. IAS 40: Investtlent Property - Transfers of investment propelty;

. IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considetation (December 2016);

. IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatllents (June 2017);

. Amendments to IFRS 2014-2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS I and IAS 28 (December 2016).
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Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
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that affect the reported antounts ofrevenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty abottt these

assumptions and estinates could lesult in outcomes that requile a material adjustrnent to the carrying amottnt of assets or liabilities for
future periods.

On an ongoing basis, the Group evaluates its estimates, assumptions and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition,
development expenses, share-based payment transactions, income taxes, impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant & equipment and business combinations.

The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepat'e<l.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, nìay change due to malket changes or circumstances

arising beyond the control ofthe Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occut.

Revenue recognition

For revenue recognition, tbe significant estimates and judgments relate to a[location of value to our separate elements in our trultiple-
element arrangements and in identifying stage of completion of our customized development of software components fot customers.

Software development seryices are mostly billed on time & matelial basis or occasionally on a fixed basis.

With respect to the allocation of value to the separate elernents, the Cornpany is using the stand-alone selling prices or tnanagetnent best

estimates ofselling prices to estimate the fait value ofthe softwate and sofnvale-relatecl services to separate the elentents ancl account

for them separateÌy. Elernents in such an anangement are also sold on a stand-alone basis ancl stancl-alone selling prices are available.
Revenue is allocated to eacl.r deliverable basecl on the fair value of each individual element ancl is recognized when the revenue

recognition critelia described above are rnet. When we provide software development services considered essential to the lìrnctionality
of the software, we recognize t'evenue fi'om the softwale development setvices as well as any lelated softwat'e licenses on a percentage

of colnpletion basis whereby the arrangernent consideration is recognized as the seryices ale performed, as measttred by an observable

input.

We determine the percentage-of-completion by comparing labor hours incurred to-date to the estimated total labor hours required to

complete the project. We consider labor hours to be the most reliable, available measur€ of progress on these projects. Adjustments to

estimates to complete are made in the peliods in which facts resulting in a change become known. When the estimate indicates that a

loss will be incured, such loss is recorded in the period identified. Signihcant judgments and estimates are involved in determining the

percent complete of each contl'act. Different assumptions could yield materially different results.

Oul revenue lecognition policies lequile management to make significant estimates. Management analyzes valious factors, including a

Leview of specifrc transactions, histotical experience, creditwolthiness of customels and current market and econotnic conditions.

Changes in judgments based upon these factors coulcl in-rpact the timing and amount of revenue and cost recognized and thus affects our

lesults ofoperations and financial condition.

Det,elopment expenses

Under IAS 38, internally generated intangible assets from the development phase are recognized if certain conditions are met. These

conditions include the technical feasibility, intention to complete, the ability to use or sell the asset under development, and the

demonstration of how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits. The cost of a recognized intemally generated

intangible asset comprises all directly attributable cost necessary to make the asset capable of being used as intended by management.

In contrast, all expenditures arising from the research phase are expensed as incurred.

Determining whether intemally generated intangible assets from development are to be recognized as intangible assets requires

significant judgment, particularly in determining whethel the activities are considered resealch activities or development activities,

whether the product enhancement is substantial, whether the completion of the asset is technical feasible considering a company-

specific approach, the probability of future economic benefits from the sale or use.

The Group has determined that the conditions fol recognizing internally generated intangible assets from proprietary software, guide

and other product development activities are not met until shortly before the products are available for sale, unless eithet' (i) the Group

has strong evidence that the above cliteria aLe met and a detailed business plan is available showing the asset will on a leasonable basis



generate future economic benefits or (ii) the development is done based upon specific request of the customer, the Group has the

intention to market the product also to other parties than the customer, the development is subject to an agreement and the substance of
the agreement is that the customer reimburses the Group for a significant portion of the development expenses incurred. As such,

development expenditules not satisfuing the above criteda and expenditures on the research phase of intemal projects are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as incuned, This assessment is monitored by the Group on a regular basis.
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S har e-b as e d p ctym en t tr an s a c ti o ns
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date at which they are granted and measured the cost of cash-settled transactions by reference to tl.re fair vah.te of the equity instrttrlrent

at the date of reporting. The Group has applied the Black-Scholes valuation model to estirnate fair value. Using this model requiles

management to make assurnptions with regarcls to volatility and expected life of the equity instrunents. The assumptions tlsecl for

estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 14 and are estimated as follows:

. Volatility is estimated based on the avelage annualized volatility of the Group;

. Estimated |ife of the wanant is estimated to be until the first exelcise period which is typically the month after tbeir vesting;

. Fair value of the shares is determined based on the share price of the Group on Nasdaq at the date of issttance. For the grants

prior to the initial public offering, the fair value of the shates was estimated based on a discounted cash flow rnoclel with

3-year cash flow projections and a multiple of EBITDA detetmined based on a number quoted peers in the 3D printing

industry.

. The dividend retum is estimated by reference to the historical dividend payrnent of the Gloup. Cunently, this is estimated to

be zeto as no dividends have been paid since inception.

Inconte taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to tl're extent that it is probable that taxable plofit will be available against

which the losses can be utilized. Significant rnanagernent judgment is required to detetmine the amount of defen'ed tax assets that can

be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the lcvel of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

As at December 31,2017, the Group had K€11,948 (2016,K€9,451;2015',K€.12,23 l) of tax losses cany forward and other tax cledits

such as investment tax credits and notional interest deduction, of which K€4.581 relatecl to Materialise NV (2016: K€1,570; 2015:

K€2,009). These losses relate to the parent and subsidiaries that have a history oflosses, in cottntries where these losses do not expile.

exceptforthenotionalinterestdeductionofK€3 15 |n2017 (2016: K€3 l5;2015:KC402) anduaynotbeusedtooffsettaxableincortre
elsewhere in the Group.

'With 
respect to the unused tax losses of Materialise NV, no deferred tax assets have been recognìzed in 2017 , 2016 and 201 5, given that

it in view of the Belgian Patent Income Deduction and Innovation Income Deduction there is an uncertainly to which extent these tax

losses will be used in futule yeals. As fi'om July 1,2016, the new Innovation Income De duction replaces the former Patent Incorne

Deduction. Under the grandfathering nrle the Patent Income Deduction system can still be applied until June 30,2021. The Belgian

Patent Income Deduction allows cornpanies to deduct 80% of the qualifying gross patent income fi'om the taxable basis. Undel the

Innovation Income Deduction system, companies can deduct up to 85% of their net innovation income from the taxable basis. Based on

its analysis in 2017 the Company has assessed that no deferred tax asset should be accounted for with respect to its unuse d tax losses in

Belgium.

With respect to the unused tax losses of the other entities, no deferred tax assets have been recognized in2017 (2016: K€l09;2015:
K€906), The G¡oup has not recognized deferred tax assets on unused tax losses totalling Kel ,904 in2017 (2016: K€8,877;2015

K€9,660) given that it is not probable that sufficient positive taxable base will be available in the foreseeable future against which these

tax losses can be utilized.

If the Group was able to recognize all unrecognized defert'ed tax assets, net profit would have increasecl by K€2,687 in 2017 duling

which K€7,904 of tax losses were utilized. Furthel details on taxes are disclosed in Note 22.10.

Impairnrent of goodwill, intangible assets und property, plunl & equipnrent

The Group has goodwill for a total amount of K€18,447 as at December 37,2077 (2016: K€8,860;2015:KCg,664) whìch has been

subject to an impairment test. The goodwill is tested for impairment based on a discounted cash flow model with cash flows for the next

five yeals derived fi.om the budget and a residual value considering a perpetual glowth rate. The value in use is sensitive to the discount

rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key

assumptions used to determine the value in use for the different CGUs are disclosed and further explained in Note 5.
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'Wren events or clìanges in circumstances indicate that the canying amount of the intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

may not be recoverable, we estimate the value in use for the individual assets, or when not possible, at the level of CGUs to which the

individual assets belong. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2017 (2016: K€0; 2015: K€I04).

Business combinations

We determine and allocate the purchase price of an acquired business to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the business

combination clate. The pulchase price allocation process lequires us to use significant estimates and assumptions, including

. estimated fair value of the acquiled intangible assets;

. estimated fair value of ploperly, plant and equipment; and

. estimated fair value of the contingent consideration

The contingent considcration as included in the financial statements is recorded at fair vahre at the date of acquisition and is reviewed

on a regulal basis. The fair value ofthe contingent consideration is based on risk-adjusted futule cash flows ofdifferent scenarios

discounted using appropriate interest rates. The structure ofthe possible scenalios and the probability assigned to each one ofthem is
reassessed by managerrent at evel'y reporting period and requires judgement fi'om management about the outcome and plobability of
the diffelent scenat'ios as well as the evolution of the variables.

While we are using our best estimates and assumptions as part of the pru'chase price allocation process to accurately value assets

acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, our estimates and assumptions are inhelently uncertain and subject to

ref,rnement. Examples of critical estimates in valuing certain of the intangible assets we have acquired or may acquire in the future

include but are not limited to:

futule expected cash flows frorn customel contracts and relationships, software license sales and maintenance agl'eements;

the fair value of the plant and equipment

the fair value of the defelled l'evenue; and

discount rates
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4 Business Combinations

Acqulstu(,ils lrt Lrtt t

ACTech

The Gror-rp has signed a share and pulchase agreement on October 4.2017 to acquile all of the shares and voting interest of ACTech

Holding Grnbh, an entity incorporated in Gemrany, and its subsidiaries ACTech Gmbh and ACTech North America Inc. (together

referred to as "ACTech Gloup") for a total purchase consideration in cash of K€27,37Q (net of indemnification asset).

The German-based ACTech Group is specialist in producing limited runs of highly complex cast metal parts in a short titneframe.

^ 
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The provisional fair values ofthe identifiable assets and liabilities at the date ofacquisition were:

in 000€

Assets
Technology
Customer relations
Othel intangible assets

Properfy, plant & equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current tinancial assets

Inventory
Trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Other assets

Total Assets
Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income
Loans & borrowings
Trade payables
Tax payables

Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total identified assets and liabilities

Goodwill
Acquisition price paid in cash

The cash flow from the business combination is as follows:

Cash & cash equivalents acquired
Indemnification assets

Acquisition price
Total cash flow

19,986
503

56

2,188
5,t7 6
2,245

542
37,626

515

17,305
997

19,986
503

56

2,188
5,17 6

2,245
542

50,1 13

Carryirrg
valrre at

acquisition
date

(47)
(1,2e8)

(l 1,308)
(711)

(3,664)
(9,063)

(26,157)
11,469

Provisional
fair v¿lue

adjusf me rtts

515
17,305
(s,333)

12,487

(5,e70)

(323)

(6,293)
6,194

Provisional
fair value

at acquisition
date

6,330

(6,017)
( l ,2e8)

(1 r,308)
(777)

(3,987)
(e,063)

(32,450)
17,663

9,707
27,370

(2,24s)
(2,048)
29,4r8
27,173

The provisional accounting for the business combination resulted in fair values of K€l7,305 for custorner relationships, K€5 15 for
patented technology, K€837 for order backlog , andK€2,048 fol tax contingencies subject to an indemnification asset.The defened tax

tiubiliti.r comprise the tax effect of the fair value adjustment for the customer relationships, technology and order backlog. The fair'

value of the receivables is K€5,176 which equals the gross contractual amounts receivable . Fail value analysis with respect to pl'operty,

plant and equipment'¡/as not yet finalized upon reporting date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The purchase price paid at the acquisition date amounted to K€29,418. The share and purchase agreement foresees that the Sellers will
indemnif, the Gloup for certain tax payables and contingencies that may occur in the period between 201 8 and 2021 . A amount of
K€3,788 has been paid in an escrow account which can be applied against the indemnification asset. The Group has estimated that the

fair value of the indemnification asset is K€2,048 which has been applied against the acquisition price. The indemnification asset will
be paid out ofthe escrow account when the related tax payables and contingencies are paid.

There are no contingent considelations payable.

The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to the trained and knowledgable workforce and to the expected synergies that will be

lealized at level of software platfonls, manufacturing and existing customer base. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax
purposes.

The total acquisition-related costs recognized as an expense in the general & administlation costs are K€609.

The contribution of the acquired business to the revenue and net profit of the Group for the yeat ended December 3 I , 2Q77 were
lespectively K€9,965 andK€275. The plo forma revenue and the pro forma net profit of the acquired business would have been

Ke37 ,096 and K€2,060, respectively, if the business would have been acquired on Januaty I,201'7 .

Acquisitions in 2016

The Group has not completecl any Business Combinations during the year 2016

Acquisitions in 2015

Aldema

The Gloup signed a sale and pulchase agleement on February 26,2015 to acquite all of the shares and voting interests of Aldema
BVBA, an entity incorpolated in Belgiurn, fol a total purchase consideration in cash of K€76. Aldema BVBA had developed expertise

in metal 3D printing and is integrated in the Materialise Manufacturing segment.

The fail values of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition were:

F air value at

in thousands ofeuro
Assets

PP&E
Inventory
Tlade receivables

acquisition date

306
t7
22

345
Liabilities

Financial debts
Trade payables
Other liabilities

(2es)
(34)

(ll7)
(446)
(101)
177

76

Total identifTed assets and liabilities
Goodwill

Acquisition price paid in cash
Cash flow from business combination

Cash & cash equivalents acquiled
Acquisition price

Total cash flow

The canying value of the acquired assets and liabilities equaled its fair value. As such, the amount of excess paid was fully accounted

for as goodwill.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The contribution of the acquired business to the revenue and net loss was respectively K€4 and K€ ( I 05) as of December 3 I , 20 1 5. The

revenue and the net loss ofthe acquired business as ifit would have been acquired at January 1,2075 is not materially different.

The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to the expected synergies and the accelerated go-to-market time for the products

developed with the acquired technology. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

Changes in the measurement of the contingent consideration for previous acquisitions

Cenat
r I L rt----l- l^ 

^^1. 
t^ ^^---:,-^ ^tt ^f ¿L^ -L^-^^ ^-i.,^+:--:-+^---^+^ ^î1^-^r D\/D^ f^-Ing \Jroup slgneu a salc ailu puttjilasg aBlggnrgtil, ult Ivlalull Lv, Lv tJ ru dLrlurrç arl ul ulç ùilarvò dlru vulr¡rË rrrrlruù(ù vr Lvrr4r u v un rur

a consideration in cash of K€1,547 and a contingent consideration related to cettain targets set over the coming years between K€0 and

KC2,250 . The fair value of this contingent consideration was estimated at time of time of final accounting (December 31 , 2015) at

K€1,310.

Based on the historical results and the folecasted financial information for the period 2018 to 2019 the Group has re-estimated the fair

value of the contingent consideration at December 31,2016 to K€ 905, and maintained this estimate per Decembet 31,2017, Of this fair
value estimate, an amount of K€25'7 is already payable to the f'ormer shareholders within one yeat (we refer to Notes l6 and l9).

The undiscounted earn-out scenarios range from K€610 to K€I,507 . The probabilities for each scenario range from 0%oto 40 %

whereby a cumulative probabilify of at least 50 %is allocated to the scenarios with a undiscounted consideration between K€ 61 0 and

K€ 641.
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in 000€

Assets
Technology
PP&E
Inventory
Trade receivables
Other curent assets

Cash

Liabilities
Financial debts
Deferred tax liabilities
Trade payables
Other liabilities

Total identifÌed assets and liabilities
Goodwill

Acquisition price
Cash flow from business combination

Cash & cash equivalents acquired
Consideration paid in cash

Total cash flow

Carrying
value at

acquisition
date

Fair value
adjustments

1,671

(s68)

(s68)
1,103

Fair value
at acquisition

date

J

34
39

2
32
4

tt4

(8)

(22)
(3e)
(6e)
45

(22)
(3e)

(637)
1,148
1,709
2,857

4
(t,547)
(1,543)

1,671
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The changes in the carrying value of the goodwill can be presented as follows for the year 2017 , 2016 and 201 5

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

5 Goodwill
/.¡^^f frr\ -- f^ll ^----.lne gooowlll nas Deen allocateo to tlle casll gcllclatlllS ulllts ( ( \J\J .r at lurl()ws

in thousands of euros

CGU: MAT NV SAM BE
CGU: e-Prototype
CGU:ACTech
CGU: OrthoView
CGU: MAT NV Manufacturing (Metal)
Total

in 000€

At January 1, 2015
Additions
Impairment
Currency translation
At December 31, 2015
Additions
Impairment
Currency ttanslation
At December 31, 2016
Additions
Impairment
Cunency h'anslation
At December 31,2017

For the year ended December 31

2077 2m6 2015

3,24'j
818

9,707
4,504

177
18,447

Impairment Total

7,714
1,769

(104) (104)
285

(104) 9,664

3,241
I t)

3,241
801

4,661
177

8,860

5,445
177

9,664

(804)
8,860
9,707

Gross

7,714
1,769

285
9,768

(104)

(r04)
(120)

t8,447

The goodwill of Orthoview (UK) and of e-Prototype (PL) include respectively K€ (163) and K€43 impact of cun'ency translation.

The goodwill related to the acquired business of CENAT during 201 6 is allocated to the cash generating unit MAT NV SAM BE.

The Group has performed an impairment test based on a discounted cash flow model with cash flows for the next five yeats detived

from the budget and a residual value considering a perpetual growth rate.

The MAT NV 3D Printing software (BE) and Cenat CGU are included in the reportable segment Materialise Software. The Rapidfit+
(USA), e-Prototypy (PL) and Mat Metal CGU are included in the reportable segment "Materialise Manufacturing". The CGU

Orthoview (UK) is included in the reportable segment "Materialise Medical". The CGU ACTech is included in the reportable segment

"Materialise Manufacturing".
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

CGU: MAT NV 3D Printing soJtware (BE)

The goodwill allocated to the CGU MAT NV 3D Printing software (BE) relates to the goodwill from the acquisition of CENAT in2016
and the goodwill related to Marcam (DE-3D Printìng Software).

The impairment test is based on the projected discounted cash flows resulting fi'om the CGU MAT NV 3D Printing software,

considering a period of 5 years. The rnain assurnptions for goodwill impaiment testing include a pre-tax discount rate (based on

WACC) of 10.18 o/o and aperpetual growth rate of 2 "/o. Othq assumptions include the year-on-year growth rate of the revenue, gross

rnargin and the operating costs which has been determined by rnanagement based on past experience. It was concluded that the value in
use is higher than the canying value of the cash generating unit of €20.9 million. Based on the sensitivity analysis whele the

year-on-yeal glowth rate of the Levenue, gross margin and the operating costs would be zelo and the sensitivity analysis whel'e discount

rate would increase with 7 "/o, the value in use would be significantly higher than the catrying value of the cash generating units.

CGU e-prototype

The impaiment test on the GCU e-plototype ìs based on the projected discounted cash flows resulting, considering a period of 5 years.

The rnain assumptions include a ple-tax discount late (based on WACC) of I L25 Yo and a perpetual growth tate of 5 %. Other

assurnptions include the year-on-yeal growth rate of the tevenue, gross tnalgin and the operating costs which has been determined by
rnanagernent based on past expelience and continued investrnents in capex in new 3D plinting equipment. It was concluded that the

value in use (€9.6 million) is higher than the carrying value of the cash generating unit of €3.32 million. Based on the sensitivity
analysis where discount late would increase with l %, the value in use would be significantly higher than the carrying value of the cash

generating units.

CGU Orthovìew

The irnpairment test on the GCU Orthoview is based on the projected discounted cash flows resulting, considering a period of 5

years .The main assumptions include a pre-tax disoount late (based on WACC) of 13.84 0/o and a perpetual glowth rate of 2o/o. Othet

assumptions include the year-on-yeal growth late of the revenue, gross rnargin and the operating costs which have been detennined by
management based on past experience. It was concluded that the value in use (€10.4 million) is highel than the car.ying value of the

cash generating unit of €9.71 rnillion. Based on the sensitivity analysis whelc discount rate would increase with l %, the value in use

would equal the carrying value of the cash generating unit. If the perpetual growth rate would decrease by lo/oto lYo,the value in use

would still be higher that the canying value of the cash generating unit. The Orlhoview business is being integrated further in the

existing software business within our Materialise Medical segment. Synergies that are expected from joined product lines are not taken

into account in the current impailment review. For 201,7 management believes that Orthoview can still be considered a separate cash

generating unit. Per end of 2017 we believe that the goodwill for Orthoview is not irnpailed.

CGU ACTECH

The irnpairment test on the GCU ACTech is based on the projectecl discounted cash flows resulting, considering a period of 5 years.The

rnain assurrrptions include a ple-tax discount late (based on WACC) of 14.93 Yo and a perpetual growth rate of 1.57 Yo. Othet

assumptions include the year-on-yeal growth rate of the revenue, gross tnargin and the operating costs which have been determined by
rnanagernent based on past experience. It was concluded that the value in use is higher than the carrying value of the cash generating

vnif of C27.6 million. Based on the sensitivity analysis where discount rate would increase with 1 o/o, the value in use would be higher

than the carrying value ofthe cash generating ttnit.
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6 Intangible assets

Tlre clranges in the canying value of thc intangible assets can be presented as follows for the years 2017 , 2016 and 201 5

in 000€

Acqulsition value
At January l, 2015

Additions
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Currency translatìon
Other

At December 31, 2015
Additions
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Currency translation
Other

At December 31,2016
Additions
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Currency translation
Other

At December 3lr20l7

Patents &
licerrses

2,342
761

Software

Á.cquired
customers,
technology

and
backlogs

6,644
89

1,474

Total

9,953
1,521
1,411

(6)

120
441

13,506
2,342

(230)
490

(e5l)
(4)

15,153
4,467

19,015
(302)

(e8)
(1 88)
(e2)

37,955

89
l0

3,202
606

(18)

4
4,497

3,788
749
ll5

(l5e)

967
671

3

(6)

t43
1

1,779
1,736

(212)
490
(26)

)
3,769
3,718

242
(143)

(e8)
(s)

155

7,638

(l 12)

430
8,525

(e23)
(6)

7,596

18,658

(l 83)
(2sr)

25,820

(2)
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in 000€

Amortization
At January 1,2015

Additions
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Currency tt'anslation
Other

At December 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
Transfer between accounts
Currency tlanslation
Other

At December 31,2016
Additions
Disposals
Tlansfer between accounts
Currency translation
Other'

At December 31,2017
Net carrying value

At 31 December 2017
At 3l December 2016
At 31 December 2015
At I January 2015

1,731
t,746
1,731
t,346

4,653
2,518

821
306

22,262
5,501
7,105
6,075

Patents &
licenses Software

Acquired
customers,
technology

and
backlogs

(ee6)
(465)

(10)
(1,471)

(s16)
3

2

(2,042)
(60e)

2

(l l7)
(2,766)

(6ó1)
(26e)

5

(s6e)
(8s l)

(1,420)
(8 le)

144

(2,095)
(1,758)

45
250

(3,558)

Total

(2,226)
( l,585)

5

(43)
(3,849)
( I,954)

242

172

I
(5,388)

79
98

49
(r46)

(9,309)

28,646
9,765
9,657
7,727

(33)
(es8)
(55e)
239

26
I

(1,251)
(t,634)

77
98
4

(27e)
(2,985)

(4,001)

patent & licenses include only the direct attributable extemal costs incuned in registering the patent and obtaining the license. Software

relates to purchased software for intcrnal use only except for software developrnent on certain application interfaces that were almost

fully funded by a third party. The softwale development caprfalized, after deduction of the funding, amounts to K€86 per end of 2017

(2016: K€39,2015: €0). The remaining amortization period is 1,9 years for the rnain software purchases and2.7 years for the main

patents and licenses.

The 'Acquired customers and technology' have been recognized as part of the acquisition of ACTech, E-Prototypy, OrthoView,and

Cenat (see Note 4).

At December 31,2U,7 , the lernaining amortization period for the acquired customel's is 21.73 years fot' ACTech, 6.75 yeats for

OrtlroView, 1.00 years for E-Plotofypy and 7 .25 years for Cenat (2016:7 .75 years fot' OrthoView, 2.00 yeals fot E-Prototypy and

8.25years for Cenat). At December 37,201'7 , the remaining amortization period for the acquired technology of ACTech, Orthoview and

Cenat ale 6,75 yeals, 2.75 years andT .25 years respectively.

Tlre total anortization charge for' 2017 is K€4,001(2016:K€|r,954;2015: K€l,585) which is included in lines cost of sales, research and

developrnent expenses, sales and rnarketing expenses and general and administrative expenses of the consolidated income statement,

F-37



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7 Property, plant & equipment

The changes in the carryìng valuc of thc propclty, plant and equipment can be presented as follows fcr the year 2A17 anC201'6

Land & Plant & Leased Construction in
in 000€

Acquisition value
At January l,2016

Additions
Acquired from business combinations
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31, 201ó
Additions
Acquired from business combinations
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31,2017
Depreciation
At January 1,2016

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers
Cutrency Translation
Other

At December 31,2016
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfets
Curency Translation
Other

At December 31,2017
Net book value

At December 31, 2017
At December 31,2016
At January 1,2016

buildings equipment assets progress Total

19,719 33,408
8 4,916

(2) (2.266)
4,1 80

(6)
(5,330)

(25)

19,791
Ju

ll,4l2
(3 1)

1r,527
(1 85)
(663)

42,234

(4,369)
(70e)

2

(17)

(5,093)
(85 8)

l5
s2t
3l

853
(4,s31)

37,703
14,704
15,350

(3e)
40,199
10,560
8,024

(1,046)
'7,439

(ll8)
(235)

64,823

37,744
17,936
14,481

8,933
2,483

(6ee)
540
(20)

4
ll,24l
2,246

136
(3e)

(42s)
5

1,139
14,303

2,114
7,899

4,652
17,334

4r4
218

(l 8,9 14)

88
(3 8)

3,754

64,174
15,306

(2,e73)
(607)

24
(3 s)

75,889
30,517
19,986

(8e8)
(373)
(210)
203

t25,ll4

(25,774)
(6,420)
1,212

n1
(e)
48

(30,826)
(8,62e)

8',15

373
196

(222)
(38,233)

96,8 81

45,063
38,400

3

69

(18,927)
(4,048)

541
lt7

6

48
(22,263)
(s,444)

842
(444)
166
u

(27,079)

(2,478)
(1,663)

669

2

(3,410)
(2,327)

18

296
(l)

(1,1 3e)
(6,623)

7,680
7 ,771
6,455

3,754
4,652
2,714
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The changes in the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment can be presented as follows for the year 2015

in 000€

Acquisition value
At January 1,2015

Additions
Acquired from business combinations
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other'

At December 31, 2015
Depreciation
At January l, 2015

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Transfers
Currency Translation
Other

At December 31, 2015
Net book value

At December 31,2015
At January 1,2015

14,48r
13,785

6,455
4,611

2,114 .

999

Land &
buildings

13,268
41333

5

Plant &
equipment

Leased
assets

Construction in

1,824
289

r)
s)

t9,719

Q,451ì,
(582)

30,139
4,693

29
(ó80)

(1,1 06)
320

13

33,408

(1ó¡s4)
(3,1 83)

686
(12)
(s 1)
( l3)

(18,927)

7,116
1,200

306
(32s)
645

(e)

8833

(2,505)
(t,357)

M
r,293

(1)
48

Q,4781

,28
(5

(4,369)

I 5,350
10,817

F-39
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The investments in property, plant & equipment in2017 amounted to K€30,517 (2016: K€15,306; 2015: K€12,836) and mainly related

to the building constructions in Leuven and Poland (Ke1?.,762), the ìnvestment into new machines and installations in Belgium, Poland

and Germany (acquired and leased - K€1 1,947) and the investment in leased motor vehicles (K€1,444). The investments in 2016

related to the building constructions in Leuven and Poland (K€6,098), the investment into new machines and installations (acquired and

leased - KC8,254) and the investment in computer equipment (K€890). The investments in 201 5 related to the acquisition of land ìn

Leuven (Ke2,026) and in Poland (K€1,283) and the investment into new machines and ins'rallations (acquired aird leased -K€7,298).

Through the acquisition of ACTech property, plant & equipment was acquired for a total alnonnt of K€19,986, of which KCll,4l2
related to land and buildings and K€8,024 related to machines and installations.

The Group realizeda net loss on disposal of pt'operty, plant and equipment of K€25 in20l7 (2016: a net gain of K€149; 2015: a net

gain of K€73).

No impairment of pt'opefty, plant and equipment was recorded.

Land and buildings

The carrying value of land included in land and buildings at December 31,2017 included K€0 of assets under construction (2016: K€0;

2015: K€0).

Finance leases

The carrying value of finance leases at December 31,2011 was K€7,680 (2016:K€7,771;2015 K€6,455). Finance leases are included

in the column leased assets and mainly relate to 3D printing machines with a carrying value of K€6,613 at December 31,2017 (2016:

K€7,7'11;2015:K€.6,455) and forwhich depreciation of K€l,864 was recorded in2017 (2016: K€1,663;2015 K€1,357). New finance

leases in 2017 amount ¡oK€2,246 of which K€1,596 relate to leased motor vehicles (2016:K€2,757; 2015:K€3,808).

Assets under construction

Per end of 2017 the assets undet conshuction mainly relate to machinery and installations in Belgium, Poland and Gennany. In 2016

the assets under construction mainly included the building of the new production and off,rce facility in Belgium and Poland (K€6,098)

as well as the conshuction and upgrade of 3D plinting machines, transferred to land & buildings and plant & equipment respectively in

2017.In2015 the assets under construction were mainly the construetion and upgrade of 3D printing machines that are being built by

the Group.

Bowowing costs

ln 2017 borrowing costs have been capitalized fol an amount of K€87. No bolrowing costs were capitalized during any of the yeals

ended December 31, 2016 and2015.

Pledges

Land and buildings (including buildings under construction) with a carrying amount of K€28,526 (2016: K€12,594; 2015: K€7 ,479) are

subject to pledges to secure several ofthe Group's bank loans. In addition pledges have been given on current and other fixed assets

with a total carrying amount of K€I3,340 (2016: €0;2015: €0) Qtlote 24).
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I Investments in joint ventures

The Group has one investment in the joint venture RSprint NV (Belgium).

The summarized financial information of RSprint NV can be presented as follows:

in 000€

(Share in the) joint venture's statement offnancial positiono
Cunent assets

Non-cu¡rent assets

Goodwill
Cunent liabilities
Non-curent liabilities
Shareholders' deficit
(Share in the) joint venture income and e.xpenses (loss)"
Revenue
Profit (loss) *

2017

1,468
t34

1,643
186

2,128
178

(1,118) (387)

(71r) (l,ele)

2016

(r,s2s)
( 15)
(62)

864
(64e)

684
(l,208)

2t3
(1,1 80)

* there are no discontinued operations

Total curent assets include cash and cash equivalents for a total amount of K€128 per December 31,2017 (2016: K€86; 2015:K€517).

Profit (loss) include total deprecations and amortization for a total amount of K€50 in2017 (2016:K€34;2015: K€8).

The movenrent of the carrying value of the joint venture is as follows:

Carrying value per December 31, 2015
Additional investment
Share in loss
Carrying value per December 31,2016
Additional investment
Share in loss
Carrying value per l)ecember 31,2017

in 000€

1,018

(1,018)
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9 Inventories and contracts in progress

T--,^-¿^-:^^ :- ^1,,1^ +L^ f^ ll^.-,:--.lllvçllturtçù ttMuuç trrç rurruwrr¡Ë.

in 000€

Raw materials
Work in progl'ess

Finished goods
Contt'acts in plogless
Total inventories and contracts in progress

in 000€

Tax credits

Guarantees and deposits
Non-current receivable on joint venhtre
Other
Total non-current assets

in 000€

Deferred charges

Tax cledits
Accrued income
Other tax receivables
Other non-trade receivab les

Total current assets

For tlre year ended December 31

2077 2016 2015

4,970
3,944
1,414
1,266

11,594

2017 2016

4,297
I,538

880
1,155
1,810

3,390
720
555

722
5,387

The amount of the inventory written-off as an expcnse is K€48 (2016: K€98; 2015:K€88).

The gloup has contracts in ptogress and advances froln customers. The total costs incuned is K€973 ancl the plofit recognized is K€293

as per December 3 l, 20 I 7. There are no advances received frorn customers or retentions outstanding. In 20 I 6 and 20 I 5 the contracts in
progress were presented under the heading ofwolk in plogress (2016: K€I,155;2015:Ke722).

10 Other assets

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets include the following

For the ycar cnded December 3l

2,446
362
804

55

3,667

1,766
342

46
2,154

+
320

36

356

The non-current tax credits relate to tax credits that will be realized over more than one year. In 20 I 5, all tax credits were presented as

curent based on the assessment of the realization at that time.

Other current assets

Other current assets include the following:

For the ycâr ended Decenber 3l
2017 2016 2015

2,02t
219
s24

2,910
3,53 8

9,212

I,483
176
666
604

I,552
4,481

t,442
1,285

2s4
958

1,054

4,993

The other tax receivables include Value Added Tax (VAT) r'eceivables. The non-trade receivables fot the year ending December 3 l,
2017 include the indemnification asset for the amount <lf K€2,048 as rcfcrrcd to in Note 4 Business Combirlatious lelated to ACTech.

Also please note that a receivable related to factoring was accorìnteil for under the non-tl'ade l'eceivables in the yeals ending

December 31,2016 aîd2015 (2016: K€541;2015: K€162). In the year ending December 31,2017 this receivable related to factoring
has been recorded under the trade receivables fot' the amount of K€646.
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11 Trade receivables

The trade receivables include the following:

in 000€

Trade receivables
Amorlization leceivables
Total

in 000€

Aú January l, 2015
Addition
Usage
Reversal
At December 31, 2015
At January 1,2016
Addition
Usage
Reversal
At December 31,2016
At January 1,2017
Addition
Usage
Reversal
At December 31,2017

For the year ended December 31

2017 2016

36,572
(ee0)

35,582

27,990
(s11)

27,479

Trade receivables are non-intelest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 30 to 90 days

As at Decemb er 37,2017, trade receivables of an initial value of K€990 (2016: K€51l;2015: K€505) were impaired and fully provided
for. Impairment is calculated on an individual basis and is accounted for under the other operating expenses. See below for changes in
the impairment of receivables.

(2e0)
(424)

39
170

(s0Ð
(s0s)
(266)
190
70

(s11)
(s11)
(620)

t2
129

(ee0)
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12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents irrclude the following:

For the year ended December 31

2017

33,611
9,564

43,175

20t6 2015

45,645
10,267
55,912

41,701
9,025

s0,726

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Shorl-term deposits are made for vatying periods

between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at the t'espective

short-term deposit rates.

In connection with the exercise of wanants payments have been received from employees for a total amount of K€209. In line with
regulations the amount of K€209 is posted on a restricted bank account per December 31, 2017 . There were no restrictions on cash

during 2016 or 2015.
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13 Equity

Share capital

The slrare capital of the parent company Materialise NV consists of 47 ,325,438 ordinary nominative shares at December 31, 2017

(2016: 47,325,438;2015: 47,325,438) with no nominal but par value of €0.058 in 2017 (2016: €0.058;2015: €0.058) for a total amount
of K€2,7 29 a t Decemb er 3 1, 20 | 7 (20 I 6 : K€2,7 29 ; 20 I 5 : K€2,7 29).

in 000€, except share data

Outstanding at January l, 2015
Transfer share capital to share premium
Capital increase in cash

Capital increase via exercise warrants on3ll1012014
Equity settled share-based payments expense

Orrtstanding on December 31,2015
Outstanding at January l,2016

Transfel share capital to share plemium
Capital increase in cash

Capital increase via exercise of wan'ants
Equity settled share-based payments expense

Orrtstanding on Decembcr 1,2016
Outstanding at January 1,2017

Transfel shale capital to share plemium
Capital increase in cash

Capital increase via exercise of wau'ants
Equify settled share-based payments expense

Outstarrding on December 3lr2017

Total
number of
founder
shares

Tofal
nunrber of
ordinary

shares

47,147,256

80, I 82

98,000

47,325,438
47,325,438

47,325,438
47,325,438

Total share-
Irolders'
ca p¡tal

2,788
(6e)

5

5

2,729
2,729

2,729
2,729

Totâl shâre-
premium

76,650
69

575
90

714
78,098
78,098

92t
79,019
79,019

820
79,83947,325,438 2,729

Tlre transfer of the share capital to the share premiurn in 2015 relates to the capital increase by exercise of warrants on October 31,2014
whereby the Group has transferred an amount of K€69 to share premium as registered in the notarial deed of March 5, 2015.

On March 5, 2015, the Gloup has issued 80, I 82 new shares at a price of €7 .22 per share resulting in an increase of the share capital by
K€5 and the share premiurn by K€575. The creation of the shares was done as parl of the deal with the former shareholders of Mobelife.

The slrareholdels' capital incleased by K€5 in2015 as a result of the exercise of wanants outstanding and fully vested. The number of
new shares issued was 98,000 at a price of€0.98 per share.

Share prenriunt

In Belgium, the portion of the capital increase in excess of par value is typically allocated to share plemium.
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The carrying value of the share premium is K€79,839 at December 31,2017 (2016:K€79,019; 2015: K€78,098). The change in 2017 is

the lesult of the share-based payment expense of K€820.

The change in 2016 is the result of the share-based payment expense of K€92 I . The change tn 2015 is the result of (i) the transfer of
K€69 from share capital; (ii) the porlion of the capital increase in cash of K€575; (iii) the portion of the capital increase due to the

exercise of wanants of K€90 and (iv) the result of the share-based payment expense of K€714.

Resewes

The nature and purpose ofthe reserves is as follows

For the year ended
December 31

in 000€

Legal reserve
(Accumulated deficit)/retained eamings

Reserves

2011 2016 2015

279 279 226
(3,s29) (1,882) 1,181
(3,250) (r.603) 1,407

The legal reserve is increased by reserving 5o/o of the yearly statutory profit until the legal reserue Leaches at least 10% of the

shareholders' capital. The legal reserve cannot be distributed to the shareholders.

The Group did not pay any dividend dwing2017,2016 and 2015.

Non- contro lling interest

The non-controlling interest is zet'o per end of 2017 , 2016 and' 2015.

No non-conffolling interest is recognized for ihe 16.670/o hetd by a third party in RapidFit+ as the amount was reclassified to a fìnancial

liability.
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MobelilÞ

On March 5,2015 the Group acquired all non-conffolling interests in the subsidiary Mobelife for a total cash consideration of K€I,377
The acquisition was accounted for as an equity transaction resulting in aK€.l,562loss recognized in the reseryes attributable to the

owners of the parent.

RapidJit+

The Group has pulchased a call option and written a put-option on the non-controlling interest in Rapidfit+. The call option is

accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 and has an exercise price which is calculated according to a specified contractual formula
based on the following param€ters: invested capital, multiple of EBITDA minus net hnancial debt. Based on our analysis the call option

remains out of the money and as such the fail value is estimated at zero at Decembet 31, 2017 . The call option is exercisable between

2015 and20l9.

The written put option has been recognized as a financial liability and measured at the fait value of the redemption amount and amounts

to K€788 at 3l Decemb er 2017 (2016: K€735;2015 K€.673). The undiscounted estimated redemption amount totals K€875 at

December 31,2017 (2016: K€875;2015: K€875). The redemption plice has an exercise price according to a specified contl'actual

formula based on the following parameters: invested capital, multiple of EBITDA minus net financial debt. The initial recognition

¡esulted in a reclassification of K€264 flom non-controlling interest and K€64 fi'om consolidated leserves. The parameter "invested

capital" of the contractual fonnula has been adjusted in December 2014 to reflect the irnpact of the capital inct'ease and the exercise

p.i'iod lrur been extended with one year. As a result, the estimated redemption atnount of the wtitten put option has increased by K€273

which has been recorded in diminution of the consolidated reserves. The written put option is exercisable between 2017 and'2021.

In addition, Rapidfit+ has issued l0 dilution walrants to the non-controlling interest which are exercisable upon occurrence of certain

specified events. The fail value of the dilution walrants is zet'o per end of 2017 (2016: K€0; 2015: K€0).
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14 Share-based payment plans

Share-baseci paymení pluns of ihe pareiû

The changes of the year for the warrant plans are as follows:

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 3l
Exercisable at December 31

1,681,000

( I 19,784)
( I 02,856)

1,458,360

1,401,852
350,000
(70,852)

2015

@
1 8,1 80

(98,283)
(e8,000)

1,401,852

2017 2016

1,681,000

The Group's share-based payment plans are all equity-settled except for the IPO warrants that have been granted to cettain employees

in certain countries due to legal requirements which are cash-settled.

The number of outstanding warrants has been adjusted to reflect the l-to-4 stock split decided in June 2014.The 2013 wanant plan

gives right to 4 shares for each warrant, whereas under all othet warrant plans one wal'rant gives right to one share. Fot presentation

puposes the tables reflect the number of shares the warrants give right to across all plans.

In the course of October and November 2077 payments were done by employees in connection with the exercise of 25,714 warlants,

representing 102,856 shates (2013 warrant plan). The payments have been leceived on a restricted bank account ofthe Company. The

notary deed required for the capital increase in connection with this exercise has passed before the notary in the course of March 20l8

E q uity-s ettlecl s har e-b as e d p ayment p I an s

The Group has several plans in place (2013 warrant plan, IPO warrant plan and 2015 warrant plan) which have similar terms except for

the exercise price, except for the 20 1 5 warrant plan,

2013 warrant plan

Each wanant gives the right to the holder to foul ordinary shares of the parent Company. The warrants have a contractual term of l0
years and vest for 25o/o in the fourth yeay 25%o in the fifth year; 25o/o in the sixth year and 25o/o in the seventh year'. Warrants ale

exercisable as from the month after they have vested and in the subsequent exercise periods. There are no cash settlement altetnatives

and the Group does not have a plactice of cash settlement for these warrants. The warrants have a contractual term of l0 years.

The Group granted in October 2013 and December 2013 undel the 2013 wanant p1an323,096 wanants to senior management, directors

and certain employees with an exercise plice ranging from €7.86 to €8.54. A total of 166,800 wailants were additionally granted to

senior management and directots in Jantary 2074.
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The status of the 2013 warrant plan at December 3 I is as foìlows

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 3l
Exercisable at December 31

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 3l
Exercisable at December 31

2011 2016 2015

435,096 439,896 555,896

(1 1,600)
(l 02,8s6)
320,640

(4,800)

435,096

(18,000)
(98,000)
439,896

V/ith respect to the warrants exercise<l, we lefer to our comments above. Since the 2013 wananT plan prescribes that each warrant gives

right to 4 shares and our table above presents the impact on the number of shares, the actual remaining number of wan ants as per

December 31,2017 equals 83,060.

IPO wanant plan

Each wan'ant gives the right to the holder to one oldinary shale of the parent Company. The warrants have a contractual term of l0
years and vest for 25Yo in the fourth year; 25o/o in the fifth year; 25o/o in the sixth yeat' and 25o/o in the seventh yeat. Wanants are

exet'cisable as fi'om the month after they have vested and in the subsequent exercise peliods. Thele are no cash settlement alternatives

and the Group does not have a practice of cash settlement for these warrants. The warrants have a conttactual term of I 0 years.

Tlre Gloup granted 979,898 wallants in July 2014 and 36,151 warrants in November 2014 in thç context of the initial public offering to
the employees of the Group with an exercise price of €8.81 ("IPO walrant plan"). The Group granted an additional 18,180 warants to

employees in July 2015 under the IPO warant plan.

The status of the IPO warrant plan at 3l December is as follows:

2017 2016 2015

727,599 772,859 828,342
18,180

(56,096) (45,260) (73,663)

671,503 727,599 772,859

Warrant plan 2015

The Board of Dilectors decided on December I 8, 201 5 on a new plan ("2015 warrant plan") by which it can grant up to I ,400,000
warrants to employees. Each warrant gives the right to the holder to one ordinary share of the pat'ent Company. The wanants vest for
l0o/o on the second anniversary of the granting;20% on the third anniversat'y of the granting 30o/o on the fourth anniversary of the

granting and 40Yo on the fifth anniversary of the granting, unless otherwise decided by the board of directors or one or more of its
lepresentatives granted powel's thereto. 'Warrants are exercisable only after they have vested and only during a pedod of (i) four weeks

following the publication of the results of the parent Company of the second and fourth quafiel', or (ii) if no quarterly results are

published, during the month March and the month September of every year. There are no cash settlement alternatives and the Group

does not have a ptactice of cash settlement for these warlants. The warants have a tetm of 10 years.
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The Group granted 350,000 warrants in September 2016 to the employees of the Group with an exercise price of €6.45

The status of the 2015 waffant plan at 31 Decembel is as follows:

2017

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstanding at December 31

Exercisable at December 31

350,000

(21,000)

329,000

Fair value

The fail value of the warrants is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the tetns
and conditions upon which the wanants were granted.

The following table provides the input to the Black-scholes model for the 2013 'walrant plan, IPO warrant plan and 2015 warrant plan:

Return dividend
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life
Exercise price (in €)
Stock price (in €)
Fair value SAR (in €)

Plan 2015
(sept 16)

0%
47%

0.24%
4.30
6.45
6.42
2.41

IPO 201s
(Nov)

0%
4',7%

t.r7%
5.50
8.81

8.08
3.30

IPO 2014
(Nov)

0%
50%

|.l2Yo
5.50
8.81

8.61
3.94

IPO 2014
(June)

0%
46%

1.70%
5.50
8.81
8.81

3 .83

2013
(Dec) *

0%
s0%

2.56%
5.50
8.54

18.09
12.23

2013
(Oct) *

0%
53%

2A3%
5.50
7.86

18.09

t2.77

(*) Exercise price, stock price and fair value are not adjusted for the I to 4 stock-split completed in June 20 1 4.

The above input for the Black-Scholes model have been determined based on the following:

. The dividend tehn¡ is estimated by reference to the historìcal dividend payment of the Group. Cunently, this is estimated to

be zero as no dividend have been paid since inception.

. Expected volatility is estimated based on the average annualized volatility of the volatility of the Gloup's stock (until

September 2016: of a number of quoted peers in the 3D printing industry and the volatility of the Gloup's stock);

. Risk-fi'ee interest rate is based on the interest rate applicable for the 10Y Belgian govetnment bond at the grant date

. Estimated life of the warant is determined to be until the first exercise period which is typically the month after vesting:

. Fair value of the shares is determined based on the share price of the Group on Nasdaq at the date of valuation. Fot'the grants

priorto the initial public offering, the fail value of the shares was estimated based on a discounted cash flow model with

3-year cash flow projections and a multiple of EBITDA determined basecl on a number of quoted peers in the 3D printing

industry.
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Tlre expense arising from share-based payment transactions for the warrants plans mentioned above was K€8 l9 irt 2017 (2016: K€921;
2015:K€714).

Tlre weighted average rernaining estimated life of the warrants outstanding as of December 31,2017 is 6.92 years (2016: 4.38 years;

2015: 5.50 years). The weighted avetage fair value for the wanants outstanding at the end of 2017 was €5.60 (2016: €6.01; 2015:
C3,54). The weighted average exercise price for the warrants outstanding at the end of 2017 was €8.05 (2016: €8.06; 2015: €8.81).

C a s h- s ettled s h are- b a s ed p altm ent p I ans

The Group has issued 215,688 stock appreciation rights ('SAR") in July 2014 towards certain employees in certain countries due to

legal lequirements with sirnilar tenns and conditions as the IPO warrant plan except that the SAR will be settled in cash, The exercise

price of the SAR is €8.81 .

The status of this plan is as follows:

2017 2015

Outstanding at January I
Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exelcised

Outstanding at December 31

Exercisable at December 31

168,305 189,097 195,717

(3 r,088) (20,792) (6,620)

137,217 168,305 189,097

The SAR plan grants the bearer the right to a cash payment equal to the difference between the exercise price and the stock price at the

exercise date. This plan is considered a cash settled shared based payment and is as such recorded as liability (see Note l6).

Tlre SAR's have a contractual term of I 0 years and ve st for 25o/o in the fourth year; 25o/o in the fifth year; 25Yo in the sixth year and 25Yo

in the seventh year. SAR's are exercisable as from the month after they have vested and in the subsequent exercise periods.

The fair value of the SAR is estimated at each reporling date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the

terms and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

The following table lists the input used for the Black-Scholes model:

2017 2016

2016

Retum dividend
Expected volatility
Risk-fi'ee interest rate
Expected life
Exercise price (in €)
Stock plice (in €)
Fair value SAR (in €)

0%
49%

0.73%
2.25
8.81

10.61

3.85

0%
s0%

0.55%
3.25
8.81
't.30

2.17

2015

0%
47%

098%
4.25
8.81

6.48
1.87

Tlre expense arising fi'orn share-based payment transactions for the SAR's plan was KC204 in2017 (2016:K€46;2015: K€43). The

carrying value of the liability at December 31,2017 anounts to K€351 (2016:K€147;2015: K€101). The total intrinsic value of the

liabilify for warrants cuuently exercisable was K€0 at December 37, 2017 , 2016 and 2015.
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Share-based payment plans oJ' Rapidfit+

Tlre subsidiary Rapidfit+ has issued a wanant plan on August 23,2013 whete a maximum of 300 warrants can be offered to

management with an exercise price of €553 .92.ln January 2014, a total of 199 warrants were granted and accepted.

The changes for the year for the RapidFit* warrant plan are as follows:

Outstanding at January tr

Granted
Forfeited / Cancelled
Exercised

Outstmdlng at December 31
Exercisable at December 31

The following table lists the input to the Black-Scholes model for the RapidFit* warrant plan:

2014

2017 2016 2015

199 tt 
':

*o õo i,

Retum dividend
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life
Exercise price
Fair value option

0%
50%

2.29%
5.5

e553.92
c262.70

The expense arising from share-based payment transactions for Rapidfit+ wanant plan was K€10 in 2017 (2016: K€10; 2015: K€10).
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15 Loans and borrowings

The loans and bonowings include the following:

As of Decembcr 31

in 000€

K€ 28,000 acquisition bank loan

K€ 18,000 secured bank loans (construction BelgiunVPoland)
K€ I 1,250 bank loans ACTech
K€ 8,750 other facility loans
Bank inveshnent loans-top 20 outstanding
Bank investment loans-other
Financial lease agreements
Institutional loan
Conveltible loan
Related party loan
Total loans & borrowings

curent
non-current

2017

27,513
11,515
9,247
4,982

21,441
2,289
9,164
1,105

I,000
241

94,557
12,769
81,788

2016

6,404

2015

5,411
9,467
2,927
7,395

936
1,000

266
33,806

5,539
28,267

5,952
4,992
2,195
5,904

856
1,000

290
21,089
4,482

16,607

K€ 28,000 Acquisition loan (balance K€ 27,51j per December 3l, 2017)

This bank loan has been concluded in October' 2011 to finance the acquisition of ACTech. The loan includes a porlion of K€ 18,000,

monthly reimbursable during 7 year:s, and a bullet portion of K€ 10,000, reimbulsable at once in October 2024.The intcrest rate is fixed
for the dulation of the loan, and amounts fo | .lYo on avel'age fol both portions. The bank loans are secured with a business pledge

mandate, a share pledge on Materialise Germany GMBH, and debt covenants.

K€ 18,000 secured banlc loans

The K€ 18,000 loan has been concluded in2016 in fwo agleements to finance the consttuction of new 1àcilities in Leuven (Belgium)
and in Poland, both rnaturin g in 2032. The agreement for the Belgian facility financing amounts to K€12,000 (drawn per end 2017:

K€ 1 1,575; per end 2016: K€ 4,050), and with reimbursements only stalting in December' 2022. The agreement fol the Polish facility
frnancing arìlounts to K€6,000 (fully dlawn per end 2017; per end 2016: K€. 2,354), and with reimbursements only starting in June

2019. The average interest late of both agreements anrounts fo l.2o/o. The bank loan is secured with a moftgage mandate on the Belgian

facility buildings.

K€ I1,250 bank loans

These 3 bank loans have been agleed by the ACTech Group to refinance a vendor loan. On December 31,2017, the outstanding
balances amounted to K€ 9,24'7 (KC 1,496 matuling June 2023, and K€ 1,750 maturing June 2021). The 3 loans bear valiable and fixed
interest rates, on average arnounting to 3%. The bank loans are securcd with a mortgage on the ACTech facilities, business pledges on

fixed assets, cash, accounts receivable, a negative pledge on ACTech's shat'es, and with financial covenants. These loans have been

lefinanced entilely in March 2018 fol K€ 9,300, with adjusted matulity to May 2025 and fir'st reimbursements in August 2020. The
interest late has been fixed at approximately l.60/o, and pledges have been reduced to a K€ 4,650 mortgage on ACTech's facilities,
besides a gualantee of Materialise NV.

K€ 8,750 - Other.facility loans

Tlrlee làcility loans wele contracted in 2005, 2006 and 2012 for the construction of Leuven office and production fäcilities (K€2,000,

K€ 300 ancl K€5,000 respectively) and another loan for the Czech Republic offices in 2008 (k€ 1,750). Tl.re balarrce of the fotrr loans

arnounts to K€ 4,98 I pel Decer.nbe r 3l , 2011 . All loans have a repayment scl.redule of 1 5 years and intelest rates are frxed between

4.3o/o and 5.4Yo for the four loans.
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Mi s c el lan eous i nv es tntent lo a n s
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2016 and in the years before to finance various investments in machinery, printers, equipment, and software tools. The vast maiority of
the loans have a reimbursement period over 7 years, and are at fixed interest rates with weighted average below l%.

Finance lease obligations with third parties

The Group has several finance lease obligations mainly with financial institutions and related to the financing of buildings and variotrs

other items of plant and equipment such as 3D plinters. Per December 31,2017 the balance of these financial lease agteements amounts

to K-€9,164, a,nd are mostl,v at fixerl interest lates with weighted average below 2"/o.

K€L, I 42 institutional loan

This loan was contracted with a governmental institution in Germany to finance the ploduction opet'ations of Materialise Gemany for a

maximum amount of K€2,000. Per Decembet 31,2011 K€1,105 has been drawn. The loan is repayable over a 4 year period, starting as

of September 2017 with a fixed interest rale of 0.25o/o payable per qualtet.

K€1,000 convertible. bond with related parly

We issued, on October 28, 2013 , 1 ,000 convertible bonds with a lelated party for a total amount of K€ 1 ,000. The bonds have bee n fully
subsclibed by a member of our senior manageDlent.

The conditions of the converlible bond can be summarized as follows:

. Number of convertible bonds: 1,000

. Nominal value per bond: €1.000

. Contractual life: 7 years

. Interest: 3.7Yo Per Year

. Conversion period: from January l, 2017 until maturity

. Convertion price: €1.97 per share

The maximum number of ordinary shares that can be issued upon conversion is 508,904.

The Group has estimated the fair value of a similar liability however without any conversion option by reference to a number of quoted

peers in Belgium, The fair value was estimated atK€901 . Upon initial recognition, an alnount of K€93 was recognized in consolidated

reseryes reflecting the fair value of the conversion option.

Finance lease oblígations with related parties

In October 2001 , we entered into a finance lease agleement with Ailanthus NV to lease land and a portion of a new production building.

The lease had a term of l5 years and included a purchase option for the land and the building. We determined that this lease was a

finance lease because (i) the purchase option is assumed to be significantly lower than the fair value of the land and building and (ii) it
was very likely at inception of the lease that we would exercise our purchase option. The amounts outstanding as of Decemb er 3l , 2017

is K€0 (2016; K€74;2015:KC72). The interest expense for the yeat 2017 is K€0 (2016: K€4;2015: K€5). The term of the lease expiled

on September 20,2016 and we exercised a purchase option in respect of the land and building. The notary deed transfet'ring the land

and building was completed in the course of 2017.

Related party loan

Ailanthus NV has granted us one other loan at fixed interest rate of 4.23o/o that matures in 2025. The purpose of the loan is to finance

the purchase of a building in France. The amounts outstanding as of Decernb er 31, 2017 is K€241 (2016 K€266; 2015: K€290). The

interestexpensefortheyearendedDecember3l,20lT ts K€l1(2016: K€12;2015 K€13).

Changes of liabilities Jòr Jinancing activities:

The following table presents the changes of the liabilities for financing activities:
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(in thousands of euros)

Balance as per January 1,
Proceeds from loans & borrowings
Repayment of loans & bonowings
New finance leases

Repayment of finance leases

Loans acquired fi'om business combination
Net foreign exchange movements

Balance as per December 31,

For the year December 3l
2017

33,806
54,319

(l 1,904)
2,906

(2,947)
18,205

172
94,557

2016

21,089
14,669
(2,796)
2,483

(1,898)

259
33,806

2015

17347
5,672

(4,7t1)
3,808

(1,546)
303
216

21,089
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16 Other non-current liabilities

The other non-cunent liabilities consist of the following:

in 000€

Written-put option Rapidfit+
Contingent consideration
Advances received on contlaçts
Provisions
Other
Total

For the year ended December 31

2017 2016 2015

788
648

109

359
1,904

673
1,3 l0

8l
53

127

2,244

735
909

69
160

1,873

We refer to Note 13 for a description of the written-put options Rapidfit+.

The contingent consideration of K€648 at December 31,2017 (2016: K€909;2015: K€1,3 10) t'elates to the business combination of
CENAT. In connection with the CENAT business an amount of K€257 is already payable to the former shareholers within one year.

We refer to Note 19.

Tl.re other items in the above table include a liability of K€351 per December 31,2017 related to the cash settled shared based payment

plan as refered to in Note 14 (2016: K€141 ;201 5 : K€ l0 I ).

The impact of the accounting tleatment of the Belgian contlibution plans with a minimal guarantee is not material as only a limited
number of people can benefit. No provisions have been recognized as of 3 I December 2011 , 2016 and 2015 . As such, no further
disclosutes have been provided,

l7 Tax payables

The tax payables amount to K€3,560 as per Decemb er 3l,20ll (2016 K€,926;2015: K€255) and is mainly related to the tax payable of
the newly acquired ACTech entities (K€3,431). At ACTech a tax payable of K€|,497 relates to the calendar year 2017, whereas the

remaindel is lelated to pending tax controls over the previous years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18 Deferred income

Defened income consists of the following:

in 000€

Defäred maintenance & license
Defened þroject) fees

Defened government grants
Other
Total .

of which current
non{urrent

For the year ended December 31

2017 2015*

18,72f
3,765
t,343

23,831
18,791
5,040

2016*

@
4,134

419
58

2tAt0
17,822
3,588

I 3,136
2,738

703
24

1ó,601
14,696

1,905

* The year 2015 has been restated to reflect the reclassification of the long-term defened income. We refer to Note 2 for more

information.

The defened maintenance and license consist of maintenance fees paid up-front which are defened and amortized over the maintenance

period.

The defened (project) fees consist of one-time and advance payments received which are defered over the contractual period.

The deferred government grants relate to grants received from the government mainly in relation to the construction of the building at

ACTech in Germany. The grants are recognized as income under "other operating income".
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19 Other current liabilities

Othel cunent liabilities include the following:

in 000€

Payroll-related liabilities
Non-income tax payables

Accrued charges
Advances received
Other cunent liabilities
Total

For the year ended December 31

2017

9,274
2,063

769
870
520

13,496

2016

-7,873
694
946
581

53

10,147

2015m
913

645
338
154

9,212

The other current liabilities as per Decemb er 31, 2017 include an amount of K€257 payable in connection with the CENAT business

combination. See also Note 16.
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20 Fair value

D:-- --^ ^: -l -^- ^t^t tlluflLtut u5ò(ts

The carryingvalue ancl fairvalue of the hnancial assets forDecember 31,2017,2016 and 2015 canbepresented as follows:

Carrying value Faír valtrc

in 000€

Financial assets

Loans and receivables measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables (cunent)
Other lìnancrai assets (non-current)
Other current non-trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

Total loans and other receivables
Derivatives

Total finacial assets measured at fair value

in 000€

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Loans & Borrowings
Trade payables
Other liabilities

Total fìnancial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Contingent consideration
Written put option on NCI

Derivatives
Total financial liability measured at fair value
Total non-current
Total cuuent

2017 2016 201s 2017 2016 20ls

35,582
|,¿¿l
5,359

43,r7 5

83,517
218
2r8

35,582
r,22i
3,7 57

43,175
83,735

2t8
218

27,479
JUU

2,312
55,912
86,091

22,843
r56

1,751
50,726
75,676

27,479
r88

2,312
55,912
96,091

22,843
r56

1,751
s0,726
75,676

The fair value of the financial assets has been determined on the basis of the following methods and assumptions:

. The canying value of the cash and cash equivalents and the cunent receivables approximate theit' fait value due to their shorl
tetm character;

. The fail value of the derivatives has been determined based on a mat'kt-to-market analysis ptepared by the bank based on

observatable marketinputs (level 2 inputs);

. Other current non-trade receivables are being evaluated on the basis oftheir credit risk ancl interest late. Their fair value is
not different from their carrying value on December 31, 2011 , 2016 and 2015

Financial liab ilities :

The canying value and fair value of the f,rnancial liabilities for December 31,2017,2016 ar'd2015 can be presented as follows

Carrying value Fair value
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

94,557
t5,670

1,741
I11,968

95,351
l5,670

7,741

t12,762

21,449
9,',n2
t,345

32,506

1,310
613

1,644
30,714
19,743

I,983
19,259
15,230

33,806
l3,400

194
48,000

909
735

t,644
3 0,071
19,573

21,089
9,712
1,345

32,146

1,310
673

34,619
13,400

'794

48,813

909
135

905
788

8
1,701

83,840
29,829

905
788

I
I,701

84,4s4
30,009

1,983

18,798
15,331
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The fair value of the financial liabilities has been determined on the basis of the following methods and assumptions:

. The canying value of current liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short term character of these instruments;

Loans and bonowings are evaluated based on their interest lates and maturity date. Most interest bearing debts have fixed
interest ¡:ates and their fair value is subject to changes in interest t'ates and individual creditworthiness. The interest-free loans

have already been recognized initially at fair value based on a present value technique (level 2 inputs) and are subsequently

measured at amortized cost. Their canying value approximates their fair value;

The fait value of the derivatives has been determined based on a matkt-to-market analysis ptepaled by the bank based on

observatable rnalketinputs (level 2 inputs)

The fair value of the written put option on non-contlolling interest has been determined based on the present value of the

redemption amount (level 3 inputs).

The fail value ofthe contingent consideration has been determined based on the latest long-term business plans ofthe Cenat

business (level 3 inputs).

Fair va lue hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

. Level l: quoted (unadjr.rsted) prices in active rnarkets for identical assets and liabilities;

. Level 2: other techniques fol which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either

directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data.

Tlre Gloup lras no financial instruments canied at fair value in the statement of financial position on December 31,2017,2016 and2015

except for the derivatives related to intrest rate and foreign cunency swaps as included in the above tables, and a call option and written
put option on non-controlling interest and the contingent consideration for the acquisition ofCenat:

. The fair value of the written put option is determined based on the present value of the redemption amount and is considered

level 3. The redemption amount is a formula (see Note l3) and is estimated on historical financial figures. The impact on the

income statement is K€53 duritg2}l7 (2016: K€50; 2015; K€35).

. The fair value of the call option is estimated at zero as the call option is out of the money based on oul analysis (see Note

I 3).

. The fail value of the contingent consideration is estimated based on the cun'ent business plans of Cenat and is primarily
dependent on achieving certain targets based on future hardware revenue and productions cost level. The fair value ofthis
contingent consideration was initially estimated at K€1,3 l0 (December 31,2015). A fair value adjustment was recognized in
201 7 bringing the fair value of the contingent consideration to K€905 per Decembet 31,2017 (see Note 4). A decrease

(inclease) ofthe future haldware revenue by an average of l0o/o assuming stable production cost, would result in a decrease

(increase) of the fair value by KC22(KC2I). Higher (lower) production costs by aî average of 10% assuming stable hardware
sales would result in a decrease (increase) of the fair value by KC2(KCZ).
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2l Segment information

E'^r moran¡mahf hrrrh^cae fhe lìrnrrn ic ntoanizcd infn seoments hased nn fheir nlndrcts seruicec ¡nd indllsflrr and has the followìns,.._.. r-"_",," ---_ ---"_--_-J

three reportable segments:

. The Materialise Medical segment, which develops and delivers medical softwal'e solutions, medical devices and other telated
products and services;

. The Materialise Software segment, which develops and delivers additive manufactuting software solutions and related

services; and

. The Materialise Manufacturing segment, which delivers 3D plinted products and related sen/ices.

The measurement principles used by the Group in preparing this segment repolting are also the basis for segment perfotmance

assessment and are in conformity with IFRS. The Chief Executive Officer of the Group acts as the chief operating decision maker. As a

perfonnance indicator, the chief operating decision maker controls the performance by the Group's revenue and EBITDA. EBITDA is

defined by the Group as net profit plus finance expenses, less financial income plus income taxes, plus depreciation, amortization and

impairment.

The following table summarizes the segment reporting for each of the reportable periods ending 3 I December. Corporate research and

development, headquarters' function, financing and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating

segments. As management's controlling instrument is mainly revenue-based, the reporting information does not include assets and

liabilities by segment and is as such not available per segment.

Materialise
Softn'are

Materialise
Mcdical

Materialise
Manufacturing

Total
segments Unallocated Consolidatcdin 000€

For the yeâr ended December 31,2017
Revenues
Segment EBITDA
Segrnent EBITDA %
For the year ended December 31, 2016
Revenues
Segment EBITDA
Segment EBITDA %
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Revenues
Segment EBITDA
Segment EBITDA %

35,770
t3,926

38.9%

30,122
10,130

33,6%

25,798
9,093

35.2%

42,841
4,400

10.3%

37,910
894
2.4%

34,856
422
1.2o/n
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63,7 t2
4,967

7.8%

46,406
3.848

8.3%

4l,381
I,645

4.0%

142,323
23,293

t6.4%

tt4,438
14,872

13 0"/o

102,035
1 1,160

10.9%

250
(e,1e7)

39
(6,39 l )

(8,23e)

142,573
13,496

95%

tt4,477
8,48l

1A%

t02,035
2,921

29%



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The segment EBITDA is reconciled with the consolidated net proht (loss) for the year as follows:

For the year ended 31 December,

in 000€

Segment EBITDA
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Corporate research and development
Corporate headquarter costs
Other operating income (expense)

Operating (loss) profìt
Financial expenses
Financial income
Income taxes
Share in loss ofjoint venture

Net floss) prolit

in 000€

United States of America (JSA)
Americas other than USA
Europe (without Belgium)
Belgium
Asia-Pacific
Total

2017

23,293
(12,631)
(2,0t7)
(9,690)
I,910

865
(4,728)
3,210
(s34)
(46e)

(1,656)

2016

14,872
(8,374)
( l ,673)
(8,646)
3,928

107
(2,437)
2,039

(l,7 l0)
(1,018)
(3,019)

I I,160
(6,810)
(2,955)
(9,700)
4,4t6

(3,889)
(2,470)
3,511

389
(401)

(2,860)

2015

Entity-wide disclosules

We refer to the Note 22.1 for the revenue by geographical area, based on location of the custorner. The total revenue realized in the

countly of dornicile (Belgium) in2017 amounts to K€8,145 (2016: K€7,534;2015:KC7,202).

The total non-current assets, other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, by geographical area is as follows:

For the year €nded 31 December,
2017 201ó 2015

3,880
29

82,746
46,576

't44

133,975

4,697
35

23,984
34,074

898
63,688

5,032
13

22,436
30,315

943
58,739

The totals of the above table includes goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant & equipment and investments in joint ventures as

disclosed in the consolidated statements of financial position.
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22 Income and expenses

22.1 Revenue

Revenue by geographical area is presented as follows;

in 000€

United States of America (USA)
Americas other than USA
Europe & Africa
Asia-Pacific
Total

in 000€

S oftware revenue (non-medical)
Software revenue (medical)
Medical devices and services
Prototyping
End parts production
Complex metal parts production (ACTech)
Other
Total

22.2 Cost of sales

Cost of sales include the following selected information:

in 000€

Purchase of goods and services

Amortization and depreciation
Payroll expenses
Other expenses

Total

For the year ended Deceml¡er 3l
2017 2016 2015

32,926
2,194

87,940
19,5 i 3

142,573

29,267
1,537

67,883
15,190

114,477

29,400
1,590

58,939
12,106

102,035

The Group has no customers with individual sales larger than l0o/o of the total revenue in 2017 (2016: none; 201 5: none)

The revenue by category is presented as follows:

For the year ended December 3l
2017 2016 2015

35,770
15,619
27,222
28,423
25,324

9,965
250

142,573

30,122
13,404
24,506
27,568
18,838

25,798
11,927
22,929
26,630
14,751

39

114,477 102,035

tr'or the year ended December 31

20t7 2016 2015

(33,978)
(7,897)

(20,806)
(106)

(62,787)

(25,374)
(s,007)

(16,161)
(164)

(46,706)

(25,203)
(3,173)

(t4,524)
(63)

(42,963)
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22.3 Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses include the following selected information

in 000€

Purchase ofgoods and services
Amortization and depreciation
Payroll expenses
Other
Total

22.4 Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses include the following selected information

in 000€

Purchase ofgoods and services

Arnortization and depreciation
Payroll expenses
Other
Total

22.5 General and administrative expenses

General and adl.ninistrative expenses include the following selected information:

in 000€

Pulchase of goods and services

Amortization and depreciation
Pay'oll expenses
Other
Total

22.6 Net other operating income/(expense)

The net other operating income/(expense) can be detailed as follows:

in 000€

Govemment grants

Capitalized expenses (asset construction)
Net foreign currency exchange gains / (losses)

Tax Cledits
Other
Total
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2017

(3,140)
(686)

(16,054)
(7e)

(19,959)

2016

rz,w¡
(478)

(l 3,985)
(42)

(t7,682)

2015

(2,176)
(1,047)

(14,874)
(8e)

(18,186)

For the year errded December 31

2017

(8,035)
(67e)

(30, l 7s)
(220)

(39,109)

(7,4s0)
(563)

(27,828)
(3t2)

(36,153)

(8,330)
( 1,1 08)

(26,655)
(73e)

(36,832)

2016 2015

For thc yeâr errded Dccember 31

2017 2016

(7,0s3)
(3,369)

(14,858)
(204)

(25,484)

(5,488)
(2,326)

( r r ,8e5)
(332)

(20,041)

2015

(3,774)
(r,482)
(9,270)

(5le)
(15,045)

For the year ended December 31

2017 2016 2015

4,368
123

(23s)
899
476

5,631

4,1 81

l2
452
74r
826

6,212

4,788
693
361

588
672

7,102



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The Company has received government grants from the Belgian federal and regional govemments and from the European Community
in the forms of grants linked to certain of its research and development programs and reduced payroll taxes.

Any government grants recognized as income do not have any unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to them.
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22,7 Payroll expenses

The following table shows the breakdown of payroll expenses for 2017,2016 and2015

in 000€

Short-term employee benefi ts

Social securify expenses
Expenses defrned contribution plans

Other employee expenses
Total
Total registered employees at the end of the period

22.8 Financial expenses

Financial expenses includes the following selected information;

in 000€

Intelest expense
Foreign currency losses
Other financial expenses
Total

22.9 F inancial income

Financial income includes the following selected information:

in 000€

Foreign currency exchange gains
Amortization discount intetest free loans

Other furance income
Total

F-66

For the year ended December 31

2016 2015

@q @Ð''
(10,136) (9,076)

(3E¡)' r , (75S)'
(8,631) (7 ,tt7)

(69,869) (65,323)
1,432 1,304

For the year ended December 31

2011 2016 2015

tl,oxl 
-(66Ð 

Gl
(3,131) (t,453) (1,568)
(s7l) (31e) (2E7)

(4,728',) (2,437) (2,470)

For the year ended December 31

20t7 2016 20ls

@E
6

374
3,210



(373)

The current tax expense is equal to the amount of income tax owed to the tax authorities for the year, under the applicable tax laws and

rates in effect in the various countries.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is presented in the statement of financial position under non-current assets and non-current liabilities, as applicable. The

following table shows the breakdown of the deferred tax assets, defened tax liability and the deferred tax expense for 2017,2016 and

2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

22.10 Income taxes and deferred taxes

/-t'ørøøt ìønaøo tnw

The following table shows the breakdown of the tax expense lor 2077 ,2016 and 2015

in 000€

Estimated tax liability for the period
Tax adjustments to the pt'evious period
Defened income taxes
Total income taxes

in 000€

Tax losses, notional interest deduction and other tax benefits
Amortization development assets and other intangible assets

Deferred revenue
Depreciation property, plant & equipment
Borrowing cost
Financial leasings
Inventory
Other non-cunent assets

Total deferred tax assets

Property, plant & equipment
Intangible assets

Tax losses, notional interest deduction and other tax benefits
Other items
Total deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax income (loss)

For the year ended Dccember 3l
2017 2016 2015

(1,530) (1,698)
412
584 (t2)
(534) (1,71û)

762
JõY

Assct/(lia bilify)
2017 2016 2015

304
109

227

Income/(expense)
2017 2016 2015

906
186

304
(6e8)

(6,247)

336
(4s2)
(873)

r,092 (32) (756)
(363)

(l,705)

860

(e8)
762

(61)
(7,006) (1,325) (2,068) 616

584
744
(t2)

The Group has unused tax losses, tax credits and notional interest deduction available in an amount of K€l I ,948 for 2017 (2016:

K€9,451; 2015:K€12,231) of which K€4,581 for2017 (2016:K€.\,570; 2015: K€2,009) relating to Materialise NV. A total of K€315 in

2017 (2016: K€3 l5; 2015 K€402) relates to unused notional interest deduction with an expitation date of December 31, 201 8.
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With respect to the net operating losses of Materialise NV, no deferred tax assets have been recognized given that it in view of the

Belgian Patent Income Deduction and Innovation Income Deduction thete is an uncettainly to which extent these tax losses will be used

in future yeals. As from 1 July 201 6, the new Innovation Income Deduction replaces the fonner Patent Incotne Deduction. Under the

grandfathering rule the Patent Income Deduction system can still be applied until June 30,2021. The Belgian Patent Income Deduction

allows companies to deduct 80% of the qualifying gross patent income from the taxable basis. Under the Innovation Incotne Deduction
systenr, cornpanies can deduct up to 85% of their net innovation incorne from the taxable basis. Based on its analysis in20l1 the
Corr.rpany has assessed that no defer ed tax asset should be accounted for with tespect to its unused tax losses in Belgium.

With respect to the net tax losses of the other entities in the Group, no deferred taxes have been recognized in2017 (2016: K€109;
2015: K€906), given that it is uncleal whether there will be a positive taxable base in the near futule fol the other entities with f,rscal

losses. The defered tax liability of K€7,006 in the year ending December 31,2011 mainly relates to the intangibles that have been

lecognized as part ofthe pulchase price allocation (ACTech).

In oul fìnancial statements fol the year ending December' 31,2017 we already took into account the announced corporate tax l'atç

decreases in Belgium and the United States, however the irnpact was not significant.

Relationship between Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

For the vear ertded December 31

in 000€

Loss before taxes

Income tax at statutory raß of 33,99Yo

Effect ofdifferent local tax rate
Tax adjustrnents to the previous period
Non-deductible expenses
Capitaltzed initial public off'eling transaction costs
Resealch and development tax cledits & patent income deduction
Notional interest deduction Belgiurn
Non recognition of deferred tax asset

Recognition ofdefèrred tax assets on previous years tax losses

Non-taxable incorne
Use ofplevious years tax losses and tax credits for which no deferred tax

assets was recognized
Taxes on other basis
Other
Income tax expense as reported in the consolidated income statement
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2017 2016 2015

(t,122)
381
442
412

(67s)

(l,30e)
44s
663

(3,249\
1,104

445

(4s3) (3e4)

44 3,664
351

(6,7 67)

1,872
365

(4,510)
742

( I ,50s)

564 '729

I,)
(1 l7)

(e2)
(s34)

50
(342)

(50)
(1,710)

693

72
389



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

23 Earnings per share
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the parent company by the weighted average number ofordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) attributable to ordinary equity holder of the pal'ent

company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average nttmber of ordinary

shares that would be issued on convetsion of all watrants.

The net profit (loss) for the year used for the basic and diluted earnings per share are reconciled as follows:

For fhe vcar ended December 31

(1,656) (3,019) (2,807)

(1,656) (3,019) (2,807)

The convertible bond and the warrants are anti-dilutive as per December 31, 2017 and as such has not been considered for adjusting the

net profit. We refer to Notes l4 and I 5 for information on the number of instruments that could potentially be dilutive but which were

not considered in the calculation above.

The following l'eflects the share data used in the basic and diluted ealnings pet shate computations

For the year errdcd December 3l

in 000€

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of theparent for basic
earnings

Intet'est on convertible bonds

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders oftheparent adjusted
for the effect ofdilution

in 000€

Weighted averâge number of ordinary shares for basicearnings per shâre
Effect of dilution;

Share options
Convertible loan

Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted foreffect of dilution

The eamings pcr share are as follows

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary olvnersofthe parent
Basic
Diluted
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2077 2016 2015

2017 2016 2015

47,325 47,325 47,224

47,325 47,325 47,224

For tlre year ended December 3l
2017 2016 20t5

(0.06)
(0.06)

(0.03)
(0.03)

(0.06)
(0.06)



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

24 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Operating lease commítmenls

The Group has operating lease commitments mainly related to buildings and cars as follows:

in 000€

Within one year
Between two and three yeats
Between four and five years

More than 5 years

Total

For the year ended Deccmber 31

2017 2016 2015

1,721
1,504

406
77

3,708

2,0t2
1,964

561

84

4,621

908
7,074

54t
l5

2,538

The total lease payments recognized in the consolidated income statement areK€2,909 in201'7 (2016 K€2,451;2015: K€1,165)

Finance lease commilments

The Group has hnance leases fol the building and various other items of plant and equipment. Future ninimum lease payments under

finance lease with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

Dccember 3 2017 December 3l 2016 December 31,2015

Minimum
lease

paymcnts

3,t79
5,017
I,361

285
9,842
(678)

9,t64

4,643
1,269

2t8
9,164

3,640
t,206

587

7,833
(438)

7,395

Present
value of

paymenfs

2,287
3,503
r,057

548
7,395

Minimum
lease

payments

1,769
4,34s

261

Present
value of

payments

1,682
3,968

254

Present
valuc of

Minimum

payments payments

3,034 2,400

lease

in 000€

Within one year

Between two and three years

Between four and five years

More than fìve years

Total
Less finance charges

Present value of minimum lease payments

637s
(471)

5,904

5,904

9,t64 7,395 5,904

Mortgages and pledges

The Group has several loans secured by a mortgage on the building. The carrying value of related propeúy, plant & equipment
(including buildings under constmction)is KC28,526 (2016:K€12,594;2015 KC7 ,479). The total outstanding rnortgages and pledges are

K€8 5, 1 86 in 20 11 (20 I 6 : K€32,3 62; 20 I 5 : K€ I 2,028).

Included in the above, the Group also has pledges on the business goodwill ("fonds de comtnerce") of the Company for a total amount

of K€29,000 in2017 12016:K€4,491;2015: KC3,491) and pledges on cuüent and other fixed assets for a total amount of K€9,131
(2016:K€0;2015:K€0).
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Notes to the consolldated financial statements (continued)

In addition to the above a notarial pledge has been granted by Materialise NV to KBC Bank on 100% of the shares of Materialise

GmbH in connection with the financing of the ACTech acquisition.

Other commitments

The Group has outstanding non-cancellable contracts with a future commitment of K€7,638 at December 31,2017 (2016: K€'1,290;

2015: K€288), mainly related to purchase commitment for raw materials. For property, plant & equipment, we have committed

expenditures ofK€.672asperDecember3I,2017 (2016: K€I0,204;2015:K€505).Thesecommitmentsrelatetothepurchaseoflandin
Gemtany.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Contingent líabi liti es

The Group is curently involved in a legal proceeding with Dentsply Implants NV regarding the alleged wrongful termination of a

supply agreement between the Company and Dentsply Implants NV entered into in 2010. The court of first instance ruled, in favor of
Dentsply Implants NV, that we have wrongfully terminated the relationship. We have appealed this decision before the court has

pronounced itself on the monetary damages. The amount of damages which Dentsply Implants NV is claimin g is €2.7 million. While
we are confident about the chances that the first instance decision will be ovem¡led, we believe that, in the event that thc first instance

decision would be confirmed, the amount of monetary damages that we would be exposed to, will not have a material impact in our

business, financial conditions or result of operations. We are currently not a party to, and we are not aware of any threat of, any other

legal ploceedings, which, in the opinion of our management, is likely to have or could l'easonably possibly have a material adverse

effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. As a result management concluded that no provision is required.
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25 Risks

Tr-^ 
^-^..,^ 

:- *^:-1., ^-.-^^^l +^ l:^,,.i.{:k, -i-1. ìø+^r.aot "^t^ ricL .-¡ ^"^¡if riaL
r llc \JluuP lJ lllalrll) ç^PUùçu tu rr9u¡q¡rJ rrù^r rrr(Lr!¡L

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has plimarily exposure to the USD, GBP and JPY as forergn cuffency.

During 2017 the impact of changes in foreign cunency rates on the cash and term accounts held in USD funded through the initial

public offering proceeds was negative for an amount of K€1,159.

If the USD (rate for I EUR) would have appleciated by 10%, the net result would have been K€l,114 higher, excluding the effect of the

cash and term accounts held in USD. If the USD (rate fol I EUR) would have depreciated by l0%, the net result would have been

K€911 lower, excluding the effect of the cash and term accounts held in USD.

To limit the exposure to foreign curlency rate fluctuations on GBP and JPY, the Group has entered into cutrency rate swaps as of 2017

We rcfer to note 20.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is that the Group may not have sufhcìent cash to meet its payment obligations. This risk is countered by day-by-clay

liquidity management at the corporate level. The Group has historically entered into hnancing and lease agl'eements with financial

inititutions to finance signihcant projects and ceftain working capital requirements. The Group still has ttn<lrawn lines of ctedit totaling

Ke4,47 3 at December 3 1, 20 17 (20 | 6 : K€.4,3 5 5 ; 20 | 5 : K€4,3 5 5).

On Septembe r 29 ,2017 KBC Bank and Materialise agleed on a credit facility, mainly related to the financing of the ACTech

acquisition, in which debt covenants were cletermined based on the ratio of the Group's total net hnancial debt over EBITDA.

On December 20,2017 , the European Investment Bank (EIB) and Materialise entered into a flnance contract to suppoft Materialise's

ongoing research and development programs for growth from 2017 to 2020. The contract provides a credit of up to EUR 35,000'000

drawable in two tranches. The first can not exceed EUR 25,000,000 and can be drawn duling the frrst year of the contract' The second

tranche can be drawn during the second year ofthe contract, subject to a specified debt ratio being met. The duration ofthe loan will be

between six to eight years starting from the disbursement of the respective tranches, and includes a 2 yeats loan reimbursement grace

per.iod. Loans unãer the contlact will be made at a fixed rate, based on the Euribor rate at the time of the borrowing, plus a variable

margin. The margin is initially equal to 1.86l.o and varies in function of certain EBITDA levels and debt latios. The contlact contains

custãmary securiiies, covenants and undertakings. As per December 31,2017 no funds had yet been dl'awn in connection with this

agreement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The range ofcontracted obligations are as follows:

in 000€

At December 31,2017
Loan &. bonowings
Trade payables
Other cunent liabilities
Total

At December 31,2016
Loan &, bonowings
Trade payables
Other cun'ent liabilities
Total

At December 31, 2015
Loan & borrowings
Trade payablos
Other curent liabilities
Total

< I year 2 to 3 years 4-5 years > 5 years 
+

I ._ ii i , .

14,331 37,933 22,286 32,699 107,249
15,670 r ; !5;670
t,741 1,741

31,742 37,933 22,286 32,699 124,664

< 1 year 2 to 3 years 4-5 years

4-5 years > 5 years Total

--
7,477 12,620 36,928

13,40p
794

7,471 12,620 51,122

< I year

6,050
13,400

794
20,244

4,691
9,712
I,345

1s,748

2 to 3 years

10,787

10,797

10,989 o,t: ',?
10,989 4,187 3,230

2
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Interest rate risk
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interest rates. The most significant loans with variable interest rates have been secured by means of a variable to fixed interest rate

swap. We therefore believe that the Group is not subject to immediate changes in interest rates. Vy'ith respect to the interest rate swaps,

we refer to note 20.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that third parties may not meet their contractual obligations resulting in a loss for the Group. The Group is

^--^^^r +^ ^*^,1;+ r:"L Â.^* i+a n¡aror'inn r^+i'¡itipc o-'l frnm ifc finannino r,:tivities which al'e mainlv denosits with fìnancial lnstlttlttons.!^lrvùçq lu vlvu¡r trôÀ ltwr¡r ¡rú vyvrs!¡¡ró ¡!Ú r¡¡rq¡rv¡¡¡b

Thi Group limits this exposure by contracting with credit-worthy business partners or with financial institutions which meet high credit

rating requirements. In addition, the portfolio of receivables is monitored on a continuous basis. Credit risk is limited to a specified

amount with regard to individual receivables.

The following is an aging schedule of trade receivables:

in 000€

December 31,2017
December 31,2016
December 31, 2015

Total Non-due < 30 days

6,920
6,434
3,402

31-60 days

1,7 65
1,8 85

1,348

6l-90 days

1,526
490
814

9l-180 days

1,614
2,008
I,057

> 181 days

2,127
1,012
1,1 l8

35,582
27,419
22,843

21,630
15,590
1 5,1 04

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's shareholders' capital management strategy is to ensttre it maintains healthy capital ratios to

support its business and maximize shareholder value. Capital is defined as the Group shareholder''s equity.

The Group consistently reviews its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changing economic conditions. The Group made

no changés to its capital management objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31,2017,2016 and2015.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

26 Related party transactions

The compensation of key management pelsonnel of the Group is as follows:

in 000€

Short-term employee benefi ts

Post-employment benefits
Tennination benefits
Total
Wan'ants granted
Warrants outstanding

in 000€

Non-executive directors of the group
2017
2016
2015

Shareholders of the group
2017
20r6
2015

Joint ventures
2011
20t6
20t5

For the year ended December 31

2rl7 2016 2015

2,190
80

2,270

s73,980

2,693
ll6

2,809
199,500
790,752

2,638
109

22

2,769
1 8,1 80

593,448

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognized as an expense during the reporting period related to key management

personnel (senior managernent and executive committee members). In the year ending December 31,2017 the compensation to key
management by means of share based payments amounts to K€384.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial
year"

Sale of Purchases
from

Interest
goods to

96
11

99

expense Receivables Liabilities

804
601

189

50
50
I2

965
972
932

112

tr7
214

ll
l6
l8

371
378
441

714
527
s47

23 28

Related party - Ailanthus NV

Ailanthus NV, shareholder and director of the Gloup, has provided several loans and financial leases to the Group for the purchase of
machinery and a portion of the office and production buildings. We refer to Note l5 fot details.

The Group rent apaftments on a regular basis fi'om Ailanthus NV in order to host our etnployees from foreign subsidiaries who are

visiting our headquarters in Leuven. The total amount paid to Ailanthus NV for rent in 2017 was K€l72 (2016: K€141;2015l. K€I67).

Related party - Converlible debt

The Group has issued on 28 October 2013 1,000 converlible bonds for a total amount of K€958. The bonds have been fully subscribed

by a rnember of our senior rnanagernent. 'We refer to Note 15 for more details.
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Notes to the consolidated linancial statements (continued)

Founder shares

At the inception ofthe Company, the other shareholders granted a total of300,000 founder shares ("oprichtersaandelen") to the founder

and CEO oith. G.oup, Mr. Wilfried Vancraen, in his capacity as shareholder. In accordance with Belgian Company Law, these founder

shares do not represent shareholders' capital but grant the holder voting and dividend rights. No other terms and conditions were

attached to these founder shares and no dividends has been paid by the Group to the shareholders since inception,

The General Meeting of Shareholders held at 28 November 2013 converted the 300,000 founder shares to ordinary A shares.

Converting the founder shares into ordinary A Shares did not confer any substantial advantage to their holder but resulted in a dilution

for the existing shareholdelsby 0%. Those A shares will benefit fi'om all rights attached to the ordinary shares.

Joint venlures

The receivable for the amount ofK€804 is accounted for undel the other non-current assets and relates to the services and goods

delivered to the joint venture RSPRINT.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

27 Events subsequent to the statement offinancial position date

Apart from what is mentioned below, there are no significant events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would
require adjustments or disçlosures to the financial statements.

In connection with the exercise of 25,l14 warrants, representing 102,856 shares, from the 2013 warrant plan in the course of October
and Novembe r 2017, the share capital was raised for the amount of K€6 and the share premium was raised for the amount of K€201 by
deed before the notary on March 30, 2018 (we refer to Note 14 for fuither information about the share based payment plans), As per
December 31,2017 the funds received in corurection with the exercise of the wanants (K€207) were açcounted for on a restricted bank
account classified under the Cash and Cash Equivalents.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

28 Overview of consolidated entities

Name

Materialise NV
Materialise France SAS
Materialise GmbH
Materialise Japan K.K.
Materialise Czech Republic SRO
lvlateriaiise USA, LLC
Materialise UK Limited
OBL SAS
Materialise Austria GmbH
Mobelife NV (liquidated)
Marcam (merged with Materialise GmbH)
Materialise Malaysia SDN. Bhd.
Materialise Ula'aine LLC
RapidFitNV
RapidFit, LLC (liquidated)
Meridian Technique Limited
OrthoView, LLC (liquidated)
OrthoView Holclings Limited
Meridian (Corporate Trustee) Limited
OrthoView Limited
Materialise SA
Materialise Colombia SAS

RSPRINT powered by Materialise NV (¡oint venture)
Materialise Shanghai Co.Ltd
Cenat bvba (merged with Materialise NV)
Mat Metal bvba (liquidated)
Elbimmo NV (merged with Materialise NV)
Rapidfit Holding LLC (liquidated)
Materialise Australia PTY Ltd
Materialise S.R.L.
ACTech GmbH
ACTech Holding GmbH
ACTech, Inc

Countrl'of
in corporation

7o equitY
interest

2017

Belgium
France
Germany
Japan

Czech Republic
I T.^:.^l C.^r^^utlttçu ot4tçù

United Kingdom
France
Austria
Belgium
Germany
Malaysia
Ukraine
Belgium
United States
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingclom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Poland
Colombia
Belgium
China
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
United States

Australia
Italy
Germany
Germany
United States

t00%
100%
100%
100%
r00%
oôo./

100%
100%
100%

t00%
100%
83%

100%

t00%
r00%
t00%
100%
t00%

50%
100%

100%
100%
100%
t00%
100%

20r6
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

oô0,/

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
83%
83%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

50%
100%

100%
100%

2015

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

o ô o,/-

100%
t00%
100o/o

100.0%
100%

100.0%
100%

83.3%
83%

100.0%
100%

r00.0%
t00%

100.0%
t00%

100.0%
s0%

100,0%
t00%

100.0%
100%

100.0%
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